
 
 
 

         22 January 2018 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 30 January 2018 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

at 
Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillor Wayne Irish (Chairman) 
 Councillor Darshan Mann (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Sarah Bain Councillor Mark Balaam 
Councillor Paul Bicknell Councillor Tina Campbell 
Councillor Maureen A Sollitt Councillor Steve Sollitt 
Councillor Chris Thomas  

 
Staff Contacts: Amy Stephens, Case Management Officer Tel: 023 8068 8273; 

Email:  amy.stephens@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3369;  
Email: guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

GAETANA WISEMAN 
Performance and Governance Manager 

 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed. To register please contact the Democratic Services 
Officer above.  

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Chairman's Report     
 
2. Public Participation     
 
3. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 12)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2017. 
  
4. Apologies     
 
5. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
6. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
7. Planning Application - Chickenhall Lane, Eastleigh    (Pages 13 - 54)  

 Full application for open storage use with ancillary offices, storage buildings and 
vehicle wash facility, and associated access, parking, drainage and landscaping. 
(F/17/81397) 

  
8. Planning Application - Blenheim Road, Eastleigh    (Pages 55 - 62)  

 Full application for conversion of existing play area into additional car parking area 
and community garden. (F/17/81683) 

  
9. Planning Appeals      

 The Legal Services Manager to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeal has been lodged:- 
  

74 Devon Drive, Eastleigh - Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning 
application for Two storey side extension and single storey rear extension 
(Ref: F/17/80443) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision. 

  
(b) that the following appeal has been allowed:- 
  

Land to the rear of 120-128 Pitmore Road, Eastleigh – Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal of planning application for construction of 2no. three bed 
and 6no. four bed dwellings with associated garages, car parking and new 
access from Pitmore Road following demolition of existing dwelling (Ref: 
F/16/79112) 
 
This was an ELAC decision. 

  
(c) that the following appeals have been dismissed:- 
  



Rivendale House, 38-40 Leigh Road, Eastleigh – Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal of planning application for the creation of 3 no. flats within 
the roof space following the conversion of existing office space (B1a) on the 
ground and first floor to residential dwellings under permitted development 
with associated parking, cycle storage, bin storage and landscaping (Ref: 
F/17/79817) 
 
This was a delegated decision.  
 
74 Devon Drive, Eastleigh - Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning 
application for Two storey side extension and single storey rear extension 
(Ref: F/17/80443) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision. 

  
10. Fees and Charges    (Pages 63 - 72) 
 
11. Minutes of meeting Tuesday 11 July 2017 of Eastleigh Museum Joint Management 

Committee    (Pages 73 - 76) 
 
12. Minutes of meeting Tuesday 14 November 2017 of Eastleigh Museum Joint 

Management Committee    (Pages 77 - 78) 
 
13. Motions    (Pages 79 - 80) 
 
14. Financial Monitoring Report    (Pages 81 - 84) 
 
15. Exempt Business      

 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 in respect of the following item of business on the grounds that it is likely 

to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 

of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
  
The Schedule 12A categories have been amended and are now subject to the 
public interest test, in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  This 
came into effect on 1 March 2006. 
  
It is considered that the following item is exempt from disclosure and that the public 
interest in not disclosing the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information. 

  
 EXEMPT ITEMS  
  
16. Appendix A to Item 14 Financial Monitoring Report    (Pages 85 - 86) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 20 March 2018 at 7:00 pm 

at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 



 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news- 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 17 October 2017  (7:00 pm – 9:08 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillors Irish, Balaam, Campbell, Mann, S Sollitt and Thomas 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bain, Bicknell and M 
Sollitt 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

30. ELECTION OF CHAIR (AND VICE CHAIR IF REQUIRED) 
 
Richard Ward, Monitoring Officer, presented Agenda Item 1 which was 
election of a Chair of the Committee following the resignation of Councillor 
S Sollitt. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That Councillor Wayne Irish be elected as Chair for the Committee 
and; 
 
That Councillor Darshan Mann be elected as Vice Chair for the 
Committee. 
 

31. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
Councillor Irish took the Chair and advised that the Christmas Light Switch 
on event would be held on 18 November 2017, led by the deputy Mayor. 
He encouraged members and local residents to attend to support local 
businesses in Eastleigh and take part in the activities as it was always a 
very enjoyable event.  
 

32. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
1) Ted White noted the recent reports in the local press that Interserve 

had been holding talks with its lenders following a profit warning. He 
asked whether, in view of Eastleigh Borough Council’s contract with 
Interserve regarding the new leisure centre, would Councillors ensure 
that there would be no revenue costs to the Council regarding the 
centre and that no costs to the council tax payer would still be 
relevant? 

 
Richard Ward advised that Interserve were the builders of the new 
leisure centre; the new centre was almost at completion and any 
payments would only be made once completion had taken place. In 

1

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

addition, Interserve would not be the operators in terms of the future 
ongoing running of the centre.  
 

2) Eileen Marks asked for further information about when a planning 
application had been passed with conditions and the procedures in 
place if these conditions had not been met within timescales. Ms Marks 
said that they had been advised that the bus storage contract where 
the Airport car parking site by Campbell Road would be given three 
months’ notice to move from the site and this had not happened; she 
requested an update regarding this. She also asked for an explanation 
of the meaning of ‘discharge of conditions’ in relation to planning, and 
referred to a further application on the site whereby she had been 
informed that a discharge had happened regarding a noise 
management plan. Ms Marks also noted that she continued to have 
issues viewing planning documents on the website. 

 
Dawn Errington, Planning Officer, explained the two terms above and 
advised Ms Marks that they would look into both queries regarding the 
above planning applications and provide a response to this. She also 
confirmed she would check if the website documents referred to 
needed to be reloaded. 

 
Ms Marks also asked whether there was any update regarding the 
‘diffusion tubes’ in Campbell Road which she raised at the meeting on 
26 September 2017 and thanked Councillors Balaam and Campbell for 
informing her of the agreement by the Committee to look into funding 
for improvements to the play park in Campbell Road. Ms Marks 
suggested that the Committee also consult with the local businesses 
that work within the industrial site, including St Modwens, about 
whether they would be able to offer any support with funding this.  

 
3) Simon Payne raised concerns in relation to the parking on Cherbourg 

Road. There were approximately 16 vehicle spaces and 1 disabled 
vehicle space within the area and four of those were 4 hour limited 
waiting bays. These were frequently used by local businesses who 
would swap their cars between the three parking bays all day, therefore 
local residents did not have the opportunity to use them.  There was 
also use of the parking spaces by the contractors who worked on the 
ongoing local developments. Mr Payne asked whether these could be 
changed to 2 hour limited waiting bays for the benefit of the residents.  

 
Mr Payne also noted the parking issues on Nightingale Avenue and felt 
that it continued to be an issue and needed to be addressed before 
there was an accident on the road.  

 
4) Jill Payne advised the Committee that she had seen Mims Davies, MP, 

on Sunday Politics recently who had said that the roll out of Universal 
Credit had been a positive experience locally, which bucked the trend 
across the rest of the Country. Department of Work and Pensions 
figures showed that 1 in 4 people had not been paid in full in 6 weeks. 

2



3 
 

Ms Payne asked whether there was any feedback regarding the 
Universal Credit since it had been introduced in July 2017 within the 
Borough and asked if there was anything in place to monitor this, 
particularly in relation to arrears in housing associations and 
mortgaged properties. It was widely accepted that the increased lack of 
housing and funds led to mental health and stress which impacted on 
local people, so she felt it was important that this be monitored.  

 
Ms Payne also raised a point about socially rented housing; she had 
seen the figures which showed average waiting times which varied 
from 2 to 5 years for families and asked whether the Borough had a 
separate break down of what percentage of the affordable homes 
within new developments constituted socially rented. Ms Payne asked 
whether, due to the need for more social housing, the Members would 
ever directly invest in more housing rather than wait for private 
developers to purchase land and build these. 

 
The Chair advised Ms Marks, Mr Payne and Ms Payne that they would 
be sent written responses to their queries.  

 
5) Phil Baker advised the Committee that he and a colleague regularly 

cycled along Bournemouth Road and there continued to be a high 
number of cars parked on the pavement, which blocked the cycle 
routes. This had become quite dangerous and his colleague had 
received some abuse recently when he asked an individual to move 
who was blocking the route. Mr Baker asked whether anything could be 
done to improve this. 

 
The Chair advised that Hampshire County Council would be 
implementing parking restrictions in the area; this had been approved 
and would be put in place over the next few months.  

 
33. MINUTES 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2017 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

34. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Wayne Irish declared a Non Pecuniary Interest in agenda items 
8, 9, 10 and 11 because he is a member of North Stoneham and Basset 
Parochial Church Council and the Deputy Church Warden at St Nicolas 
Church.  
 
Councillor Irish handed the meeting over to the Vice-Chair.   

3



4 
 

 
35. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 

 
Development Management staff gave a short presentation on guidelines 
that had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; 
in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  
This was set against the broader policy framework. 
 

36. PLANNING APPLICATION - NORTH STONEHAM PARK, CHESTNUT 
AVENUE/STONEHAM LANE, EASTLEIGH, SO50 9HT 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 8) concerning reserved matters for 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale (pursuant to outline planning 
permission O/15/76023 which was subject to Environmental Impact 
Assessment) for Stage 2 for the erection of 514 dwellings comprising 
parcels 1A, 3A(1), 3A(2) and 5A (part), provision of public open space in 
parcel 1A, associated access roads, drainage, car parking, refuse storage, 
boundary treatments and other supporting works and infrastructure - (Ref: 
RM/17/81168). 
 
The Committee was advised of the following report updates; 
 
There was a typing error in paragraph 86 and the Section 106 does 
require 35% affordable housing to be met. 
 
No further neighbour comments had been received. 
 
Further final amended plans had been received in response to 
consultation responses received prior to and following publication of the 
report, including improvements to highways, parking, elevations and 
landscaping where necessary. 
 
The following consultee responses had been received: 
 
HCC Flood and Water Team – no comments/objection. 
 
HCC Highways – amended plans addressed the minor design concerns. 
 
Biodiversity Officer – objection withdrawn subject to condition for final 
planting details within buffer area. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That Reserved Matters be APPROVED subject to:  
 
(1)  Amendments to Condition 2 to reference Stage 2 Design Code, 

July 2017 rather than Stage 1 (Jan 17); 
 

4



5 
 

(2) Amendments to Condition1 to refer to latest submitted plans: 
The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in 
accordance with the following plans numbered: 14-159-2000 
Rev D, 14-159-2001 Rev C, 14-159-2002 Rev C, 14-159-2003 Rev 
C, 14-159-2004 Rev C, 14-159-2005 Rev B, 14-159-2006 Rev B, 
14-159-2007 Rev B, 14-159-2008 Rev B, 14-159-2009 Rev B, 14-
159-2010 Rev B, 14-159-2011 Rev B, 14-159-2012 Rev B, 14-159-
2013 Rev B, 14-159-2014 Rev B, 14-159-2015 Rev B, 14-159-
2016 Rev B, 14-159-2017 Rev C, 14-159-2018 Rev C, 14-159-
2019 Rev C, 14-159-2020 Rev C, 14-159-2021 Rev E, 14-159-
2022 Rev E, 14-159-2023 Rev E, 14-159-2024 Rev E, 14-159-2025 
Rev C, 14-159-2026 Rev C, 14-159-2030 Rev B, 14-159-2031 Rev 
B, 14-159-2032 Rev B, 14-159-2033 Rev C, 14-159-2035, 14-159-
2037, 14-159-2038, 14-159-2039, 17.003.001, 17.003.005, 
17.003.010 Rev A, 17.003.011, 17.003.012 Rev A, 17.003.013 Rev 
A, 17.003.050, 17.003.100 Rev B, 17.003.101 Rev A, 17.003.102 
Rev B, 17.003.103 Rev A, 17.003.104 Rev A, 17.003.105 Rev B, 
17.003.106 Rev B, 17.003.107 Rev A, 17.003.108 Rev A, 
17.003.109 Rev A, 17.003.110 Rev B, 17.003.111 Rev A, 
17.003.112 Rev B, 17.003.113 Rev B, 17.003.114 Rev A, 
17.003.115 Rev A, 17.003.116 Rev B, 17.003.117 Rev A, 
17.003.118 Rev B, 17.003.119 Rev A, 17.003.120 Rev A, 
17.003.121 Rev A, 17.003.122 Rev B, 17.003.123 Rev A, 
17.003.124 Rev B, 17.003.125 Rev, 17.003.126 Rev B, 17.003.127 
Rev A, 17.003.128 Rev B, 17.003.128 Rev A, 17.003.130 Rev B, 
17.003.131 Rev A, 17.003.132 Rev A, 17.003.133 Rev A, 
17.003.134 Rev A, 17.003.135 Rev A, 17.003.136 Rev A, 
17.003.137 Rev A, 17.003.138 Rev B, 17.003.139 Rev A, 
17.003.140 Rev A, 17.003.141 Rev A, 17.003.142 Rev A, 
17.003.143 Rev A, 17.003.144 Rev A, 17.003.145 Rev A, 
17.003.146 Rev B, 17.003.147 Rev A, 17.003.148 Rev A, 
17.003.149 Rev A, 17.003.150 Rev A, 17.003.151 Rev A, 
17.003.152 Rev A, 17.003.153 Rev A, 17.003.154 Rev A, 
17.003.155 Rev A, 17.003.156 Rev A, 17.003.157 Rev A, 
17.003.158 Rev A, 17.003.159 Rev A, 17.003.160 Rev B, 
17.003.161 Rev A, 17.003.162 Rev B, 17.003.163 Rev A, 
17.003.164 Rev B, 17.003.165 Rev A, 17.003.166 Rev B, 
17.003.167 Rev A, 17.003.168 Rev B, 17.003.169 Rev A, 
17.003.170 Rev B, 17.003.171 Rev A, 17.003.172 Rev B, 
17.003.173 Rev A, 17.003.174 Rev B, 17.003.175 Rev A, 
17.003.176, 17.003.177, 17.003.178, 17.003.300 Rev A, 
17.003.301 Rev A, 17.003.302 Rev A, 17.003.303 Rev A, 
17.003.304 Rev A, 17.003.305 Rev A, 17.003.306 Rev A, 
17.003.307 Rev A, 17.003.308 Rev A, 17.003.309 Rev A, 
17.003.310 Rev A, 17.003.311 Rev A, 17.003.312 Rev A, 
17.003.313 Rev A, 17.003.314 Rev A, 17.003.315 Rev A, 
17.003.316 Rev A, 17.003.317 Rev A, 17.003.318 Rev A, 
17.003.319 Rev A, 17.003.320 Rev A, 17.003.321 Rev A, 
17.003.322 Rev A, 17.003.323 Rev A, 17.003.324 Rev A, 
17.003.325 Rev A, 17.003.326 Rev A, 17.003.327, 17.003.327, 

5



6 
 

17.003.328, 17.003.329, 17.003.340 Rev, 17.003.341 Rev A,  A, 
17.003.342 Rev A, DD145D01 Rev B, DD145D04, DD145D05, 
DD145L31 Rev B, DD145L32 Rev B, DD145L33 Rev B, 
DD145L34 Rev B, DD145L35 Rev B, DD145L44, DD171D06; 

 
(3) The following new condition:  Final details relating to planting, 

boundary treatments, any car port doors, board walks, 
acoustic fencing, acoustic glazing and ventilation and surface 
materials shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
development.  Reason: In the interests of visual and 
environmental amenity; 

 
(4) Addition of the following Note to Applicant: Submitted details 

relating to planting, boundary treatments and materials are to 
be treated as illustrative and to be dealt with by way of 
condition discharge pending further discussions; and 

 
(5) The recommended conditions and reasons.  
 
(NOTES: a) Councillor Irish declared an interest in Item 8 and left the 
meeting prior to this item and did not return to the meeting; and b) the 
agent spoke in support of the application.) 
 

37. PLANNING APPLICATION - NORTH STONEHAM PARK, CHESTNUT 
AVENUE/STONEHAM LANE, EASTLEIGH, SO50 9HT 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 9) concerning erection of 39 dwellings 
(additional to the 1,100 dwellings granted under outline permission 
O/15/76023), public open space, landscaping, boundary treatments, roads 
and footways, car parking, drainage and other supporting works and 
infrastructure for Stage 3 on land previously identified as part of parcel 5A 
of outline permission ref. O/15/76023 (Application includes an Addendum 
to the Environmental Impact Assessment) – (Ref. F/17/81165) 
 
The Committee was advised of the following consultee updates; 
 
HCC Flood and Water team – final wording of SuDS condition to be 
advised and to be delegated. 
 
HCC Highways – minor amendments in response to comments now 
provided. 
 
Implementation and Design Team – further minor amendments sought and 
now subject to conditions. 
 
Biodiversity Officer – no objection subject to additional recommended 
condition. 
 

6



7 
 

RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to:  
 
(1)  Completion of a Section 106 agreement;  
 
(2) the following amendment to Condition 1 to include final list of 

plans: The development hereby permitted shall be 
implemented in accordance with the following plans 
numbered: 14-159-2000 Rev D, 14-159-2003 Rev C, 14-159-2004 
Rev C, 14-159-2007 Rev B, 14-159-2008 Rev B, 14-159-2011 Rev 
B, 14-159-2012 Rev B, 14-159-2015 Rev B, 14-159-2016 Rev B, 
14-159-2019 Rev C, 14-159-2020 Rev C, 14-159-2023 Rev E, 14-
159-2024 Rev E, 14-159-2025 Rev C, 14-159-2026 Rev C, 14-159-
2032 Rev B, 14-159-2033 Rev C, 14-159-2035, 14-159-2037, 
17.003.500 Rev A, 17.003.510 Rev B, 17.003.511, 17.003.512 Rev 
B, 17.003.550 Rev B, 17.003.551 Rev A, 17.003.552 Rev B, 
17.003.553 Rev A, 17.003.554 Rev B, 17.003.555 Rev A, 
17.003.560 Rev A, 17.003.561 Rev A, 17.003.562 Rev A, 
17.003.563 Rev A, 17.003.564 Rev A, 17.003.565 Rev A, 
17.003.566 Rev A, 17.003.567 Rev A, 17.003.568 Rev A, 
17.003.569 Rev A, 17.003.570 Rev A, DD145D01 Rev B, 
DD145D04, DD145L31 Rev B, DD145L36 Rev B, DD145L44, 
DD145VP 14, SP01; 
 

(3) The following amendment to Condition 4: “No development 
shall take place until a scheme for the provision and 
management of waterway buffers of 20m+ on the south side of 
the adjoining ditch/watercourse and 15-20m+ on its north side 
as shown on drawing no. 17.003.512 Rev B, shall be submitted 
to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved scheme and any subsequent amendments 
shall be agreed in writing with the local planning authority. The 
buffer zone scheme shall be free from built development 
including lighting, domestic gardens and formal landscaping; 
Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, the 
scheme shall include:  

• Plans showing the extent and layout of the buffer zone 
• Details of any proposed planting scheme (native species) 
• Details demonstrating how the buffer zone will be protected 

during development and managed/maintained over the longer 
term including adequate financial provision and named body 
responsible for management plus production of detailed 
management plan 

• No additional or amended footpaths or lighting within the 
buffer zone”; 

 
(4) The following amendment to condition 7: The details and 

provisions of the submitted Detailed Landscape Plan and 

7



8 
 

Planting Schedule, Green Infrastructure Strategy, and 
Landscape and Ecology Management Strategy Revision A and 
Pre-Construction and During Construction Ecological 
Protection and Mitigation Plan shall be fully implemented for 
this phase of development unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning; 

 
(5) The following new condition:  Final details relating to planting, 

boundary treatments and surface materials shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the commencement of development.  Reason: In the 
interests of visual and environmental amenity; 

 
(6) Any further conditions recommended by HCC Flood and Water 

Team regarding SuDS (delegated to officers);  
 
(7) The following additional Note to Applicant: Details relating to 

planting, boundary treatments and materials to be treated as 
illustrative and to be dealt with by way of condition discharge 
pending further discussions; and 

 
(8) The recommended conditions and reasons.  
 
(NOTES: a) Councillor Irish declared an interest in Item 9 and was not 
present; b) one member of the public objected to the application citing 
concerns about whether there should be more houses on the site due to 
already using flats as a noise barrier, the number of additional traffic 
movements that would be created and noted the lack of current 
communication from the developer with existing residents to minimise the 
impact on them and; c) the agent spoke in support of the application.) 
 

38. PLANNING APPLICATION - NORTH STONEHAM PARK, CHESTNUT 
AVENUE/STONEHAM LANE, EASTLEIGH, SO50 9HT 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 10) concerning erection of 18 dwellings 
(additional to the 1,100 dwellings granted under outline permission 
O/15/76023), landscaping, boundary treatments, roads and footways, car 
parking, drainage and other supporting works and infrastructure for Stage 
4 following demolition and site clearance on land previously identified as 
part of parcel 2B of outline permission ref. O/15/76023 (Application 
includes an Addendum to the Environmental Impact Assessment) – (Ref. 
F/17/81167) 
 
The Committee was advised that of the following consultee updates: 
 
Biodiversity Officer – no objection subject to conditions. 
 

8



9 
 

HCC Flood and Water team – final wording of SuDS condition to be 
advised and to be delegated. 
 
HCC Highways – minor amendments in response to comments now 
provided. 
 
Implementation and Design Team – no comments raised on amended 
plans. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to:  
 
(1)  Completion of a Section 106 agreement; 
 
(2) The following amendment to condition 7: The details and 

provisions of the submitted Detailed Landscape Plan and 
Planting Schedule, Green Infrastructure Strategy, and 
Landscape and Ecology Management Strategy Revision A and 
Pre-Construction and During Construction Ecological 
Protection and Mitigation Plan shall be fully implemented for 
this phase of development unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning; 

 
(3) The following new condition:  Final details relating to planting, 

boundary treatments and surface materials shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the commencement of development.  Reason: In the 
interests of visual and environmental amenity; 

 
(4) Any further conditions recommended by HCC Flood and Water 

Team re SuDS (delegated to officers);  
 
(5) Addition of the following Note to applicant: Details relating to 

planting, boundary treatments and materials to be treated as 
illustrative and to be dealt with by way of condition discharge 
pending further discussions; and 

 
(6) The recommended conditions and reasons.  
 
(NOTES: a) Councillor Irish declared an interest in Item 10 and was not 
present; and b) the agent spoke in support of the application.) 
 

39. PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND AT MONKS BROOK PLAYING 
FIELDS AND LAND SOUTH OF JUNCTION 05 OF THE M27 
MOTORWAY, STONEHAM LANE, EASTLEIGH, SO50 9HT 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 11) concerning reserved Matters for 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale pursuant to outline permission 

9



10 
 

O/15/76023: Playing pitches and construction of associated facilities 
(including changing pavilion/hub building, spectator stands, enclosures, 
all-weather playing surfaces, floodlighting, parking, new footway/cycleway, 
landscaping and associated works and engineering operations) – (Ref. 
RM/17/81169) 
 
The Committee was advised of the following consultee responses; 
 
HCC Flood and Water Team - no comments had been received.  
 
Tree Officer – no objection subject to the conditions. 
 
Implementation and Design Team – no objection subject to a condition for 
final planting details. 
 
Environmental Health – no further comments as the contaminated land 
had been covered by outline conditions. 
 
Highways England – no objection subject to the conditions. 
 
HCC Countryside –  now only sought upgrades to the existing public right 
of way and a financial contribution had been agreed.  
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That Reserved Matters be APPROVED subject to;  
 

(1)  New condition 8: All flood lighting inside the 
development site shall be constructed (as per drawing 
nos. SSL2175 04, SSL2175 05 and SSL2175 06) and 
maintained such that it faces vertically downwards at all 
times. Reason: to prevent dazzle to users of the M27 and 
its Junction 5; 
 

(2) New Condition 9: A 200lux limit on the brightness of all 
lighting within the site shall be adhered to at all times as 
per the lighting assessment report: SSL2175 Appendix A 
Floodlighting Performance Results Option 1 200lux 
REV2 – dated 27-07-2017.  Reason: to prevent dazzle to 
users of the M27 and its Junction 5; 
 

(3) New Condition 10: Final details of the car park lighting 
and its location shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority, in consultation 
with Highways England, prior to the commencement of 
construction. Reason: to prevent dazzle to users of the 
M27 and its Junction 5; 
 

(4) New Condition 11: No excavation, demolition or 
development related works shall take place on site until 

10



11 
 

a detailed Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree 
protection Plan, as per British Standard 5837:2012 
(Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and 
Construction – Recommendations), are submitted and 
approved by the LPA. Matters that must be address 
include, but are not limited to, drainage, service runs, 
hardstanding with RPAs, arboricultural works, tree 
protection fencing and ground protection. The approved 
Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection 
Plan must be adhered to in full, and may only be 
modified subject to written agreement from the LPA. 
This tree condition may only be fully discharged on 
completion of the development subject to satisfactory 
written evidence of monthly monitoring and compliance 
by the pre-appointed tree specialist during construction. 
Reason - To retain and protect the existing trees which 
form an important part of the amenity of the locality; 
 

(5) New Condition 12: No excavation, demolition or 
development related works shall take place on site until 
the LPA officer has inspected and approved the 
proposed tree protection, as part of a pre-
commencement meeting.  Once approved no access by 
vehicles or placement of goods, chemicals, fuels, soil or 
other materials shall take place within fenced area. The 
fencing shall be retained in its approved form for the 
duration of the work. This tree condition may only be 
fully discharged on completion of the development 
subject to satisfactory written evidence of monthly 
monitoring and compliance by the pre-appointed tree 
specialist during construction. Reason - To retain and 
protect the existing trees which form an important part 
of the amenity of the locality; 
 

(6) New Condition 13: Final landscape plans shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
authority prior to the commencement of development.  
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and ecology;  
 

(7) Amended condition 5: Details of all site fencing and 
security barriers/gates shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior 
to its installation, and the agreed fencing and security 
barriers/gates shall be provided prior to the 
commencement of use of the development permitted 
and retained at all times unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority; and 

 
(8) The recommended conditions and reasons.  

 

11



12 
 

(NOTE: Councillor Irish declared an interest in Item 11 and was not 
present.) 
 

40. THANK YOU 
 
Councillor Balaam welcomed Councillor Mann into his position as Vice 
Chair and congratulated him on stepping up to Chair the Committee 
having only just been elected. 
 
He also thanked Councillor S Sollitt for his work as Vice Chair and Chair of 
the Committee in recent months and also personally thanked Councillor 
Sollitt for the support that he had provided to him in his first term as a 
Councillor.  
 
 
M6036 
 
 

12



ELAC – Eastleigh Local Area Committee – Tuesday 30 January 2018 

 
Application No: F/17/81397 
Case Officer: David Huckfield 
Received Date: 28 September 2017 
Site Address: Chickenhall Lane, Eastleigh, SO50 6RQ 
Applicant: Blaze Construction Ltd & Clean Power Properties Ltd 
Proposal: Open storage use with ancillary offices, storage buildings 

and vehicle wash facility, and associated access, parking, 
drainage and landscaping.  
 

Recommendation: To delegate the decision back to the Lead Specialist for 
Housing and Development in conjunction with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of Eastleigh Local Area Committee to PERMIT 
the application subject to no material objection from the 
Council’s appointed Ecologist and the imposition / 
amendment of the wording of any related conditions required 
in this respect, as well as the securing of the required 
Transport contributions.   

 
DEVELOPMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 
 
(1) The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 

the following plans numbered: Chick001 Rev D, Chick002 Rev D, Chick003 
Rev B, Chick 004 Rev A, Chick005, Chick006, Chick007 Rev D, Chick008, 
194_PP_01 Rev C, 194_PP_Rev A. Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and 
in the interests of proper planning.  
 

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be commenced prior to the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. Reason: To comply with 
Section 91 (as amended) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
(3) Prior to commencement of development, the following details shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority: 
 

(i) details and samples of the materials to be used in the construction of 
the external surfaces of the development; 

(ii) details of the proposed locations, heights, materials, design and 
colour of perimeter fencing. 

 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interests of the 
amenities of the area. 

 
(4) No construction or demolition work shall start until a Construction Environment 

Management Plan, to incorporate a Dust Management Plan and Construction 
Ecological Management Plan, has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning Authority. Demolition and construction work shall only 
take place in accordance with the approved details which shall include: 
 

13

Agenda Item 7



a) a programme and phasing of the demolition and construction work, 
including roads, landscaping and open space; 
b) location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction material and 
plant storage areas used during demolition and construction; 
c) safeguards to be used within the construction process to ensure surface 
water contains no pollutants on leaving the site in accordance with the 
measures outlined within Section 5 of the submitted Hydrological Impact 
Assessment (RMA Environmental – 5 September 2017); 
d) safeguards for fuel and chemical storage and use, to ensure no pollution of 
the surface water leaving the site;  
e) the arrangements for the routing / turning of lorries and details for 
construction traffic access to the site; 
f) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works, 
loading / unloading of plant & materials and restoration of any damage to the 
highway [including vehicle crossovers and grass verges]. 
g) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
h) a dust management plan (DMP) setting out measures to control the 
emission of dust and dirt generated by demolition and construction. The DMP 
shall make reference to the recommendations set out within Appendix F of the 
submitted Air Quality Assessment (Entran – September 2017); 
i) a scheme, following assessment, for controlling noise and vibration impacts 
on noise sensitive properties from demolition, site preparation and 
construction activities [to include piling if proposed]; 
j) provision for storage, collection, and disposal of rubbish from the 
development during construction period; 
k) measures to prevent mud and dust on the highway during demolition and 
construction; 
l) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
m) temporary lighting; and 
n) ecological mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures during 
construction in accordance with Section 4 of the submitted Ecological Impact 
Assessment (EAD Ecology – September 2017). 
 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the locality 
and neighbouring residents, and to ensure no adverse impact on biodiversity 
and hydrology during the construction process. 

 

(5) No development shall start until details for the disposal of foul sewerage from 
the development hereby permitted, and a timetable for its implementation, 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of foul drainage. 
 

(6) No development shall start until details of the measures to be undertaken to 
divert/protect the public sewers and water apparatus within the access to the 
site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The development shall then accord with the approved details. 
Reason: To ensure that appropriate protection is afforded to the below ground 

14



water apparatus and sewerage network.  
 

(7) Prior to commencement of development, a detailed Sustainable Urban 
Drainage scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The drainage scheme shall be based upon the principles 
within the drainage strategy contained within the submitted Flood Risk 
Assessment (RMA Environmental) and incorporate the safeguards and 
mitigation outlined in Section 6 of the submitted Hydrological Impact 
Assessment (RMA Environmental – September 2017) to offset operational 
impacts on water quality within the River Itchen SAC and SSSI. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: To provide satisfactory surface water drainage and ensure no impact 
on the River Itchen SAC and SSSI from pollution within the operational phase. 
 

(8) No development shall start until a detailed final landscaping scheme has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall be based on the submitted planting and screening hedgebank 
plans (Drawing Nos. 194_PP_01 Rev C and 194_PP_02 Rev A) and cover all 
hard and soft landscaping and provide details of timings for all landscaping 
and any future maintenance and management. The works shall thereafter be 
carried out in accordance with the approved plans and to the appropriate 
British Standard. Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality. 
 

(9) No development shall start until an Ecological Management Plan (EMP) has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
EMP shall include details for the timing for the implementation of the 
ecological mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures set out 
within the submitted Ecological Impact Assessment (EAD Ecology – 
September 2017) and the provision for their future maintenance and 
management. These measures shall thereafter be implemented in their 
entirety and managed in accordance with the approved EMP. Reason: To 
secure ecological mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures in the 
interests of biodiversity.   
 

(10) All hard & soft landscaping, tree planting and boundary treatments shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and to the appropriate 
British Standard. For a period of no less than 5 years after planting, any trees 
or plants which are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, 
shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of the same 
species, size and number as originally approved in the landscaping scheme. 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to safeguard 
the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 

(11) No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological assessment in accordance 
with a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) that has been submitted to and 
approved by the local planning authority in order to recognise, characterise 
and record any archaeological features and deposits that may exist here. The 
assessment shall take the form of trial trenches located across the proposed 
site. Reason: To assess the extent, nature and date of any archaeological 

15



deposits that might be present and the impact of the development upon these 
heritage assets.  
 

(12) No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological mitigation of impact, based 
on the results of the trial trenching, in accordance with the Written Scheme of 
Investigation submitted to and approved by the local planning authority under 
Condition 11. Reason: To mitigate the effect of the works associated with the 
development upon any heritage assets and to ensure that information 
regarding these heritage assets is preserved for future generations.  
 

(13) Following the completion of the archaeological fieldwork, a report shall be 
produced and submitted to the local planning authority in accordance with an 
approved programme including, where appropriate, post-excavation 
assessment, specialist analysis and reports, publication and public 
engagement.  Reason: To contribute to our knowledge and understanding of 
our past by ensuring that opportunities are taken to capture evidence from the 
historic environment and to make this publicly available.  
 

(14) No work shall commence on site until the following has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
 
a) A site investigation and risk assessment (phase 2) report documenting the 
ground conditions of the site, including ground gases, and incorporating 
chemical analysis in accordance with BS8576:2013 'Guidance on 
investigations for ground gas - Permanent gases and Volatile Organic 
Compounds (VOCs)' and BS10175:2011 'Investigation of potentially 
contaminated sites - Code of practice', and unless otherwise agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority;  
 
b) a detailed scheme for remedial works and measures (including validation of 
the remedial works) to be undertaken to avoid the risk from contaminants 
when the site is developed and proposals for future maintenance and 
monitoring, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall include nomination of a competent 
person to oversee the implementation of the scheme for remedial works and 
measures.  
 
Reason: To address the risk from land contamination for public safety. 

 
(15) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied/brought into use until 

there has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority verification by the 
competent person approved under the provisions of condition 14(b) that any 
remediation scheme required and approved under the provisions of condition 
14(b) has been implemented fully in accordance with the approved details 
(unless varied with the written permission of the Local Planning Authority in 
advance of implementation). Typically such a report would comprise: 
 
a) A description of the site and its background, and summary of relevant site 
information; 

16



b) A description of the remediation objectives and remedial works carried out; 
c) Verification data, including - data (sample locations / analytical results), as 
built drawings of the implemented scheme, photographs of the remediation 
works in progress, etc.; and 
d) Certificates demonstrating that imported and / or material left in situ is free 
from contamination and gas / vapour membranes have been installed 
correctly.  
 
Thereafter the scheme shall be monitored and maintained in accordance with 
the scheme approved under condition 14(b). 
 
Reason: To minimise the risk from land contamination for public safety. 

 

(16) Prior to their installation, details of any fixed plant or fixed machinery to be 
installed on the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The development shall then accord with the approved 
details. Reason: In the interests of the protection of the amenity of the 
occupiers of neighbouring residential uses. 

 

(17) Prior to the development being brought into use, a noise management plan 
shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval. Unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, the approved plan 
shall thereafter be implemented in full. The plan shall set out details of the 
main sources of noise expected to arise from the permitted use and the 
measures to be adopted to minimise the impact of noise upon the amenity of 
residential uses. Reason: In the interests of the protection of the amenity of 
the occupiers of neighbouring residential uses.  

 

(18) Details of the proposed external storage areas for the operational phase of the 
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority prior to any materials being brought onto site. These details 
shall specify the type of materials and the height at which they would be stored 
including any provisions for racking, as well as their siting with reference to the 
approved site layout (drawing number Chick001 Rev D). The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the local planning authority. Reason: In the interests of the 
visual amenity of the locality.  

 

(19) Before the use hereby permitted commences, a detailed lighting scheme shall 
be submitted to the local planning authority for approval.  Unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the local planning authority, the approved scheme shall 
thereafter be implemented.  The scheme shall make reference to the Institute 
of Lighting Professionals Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light 
GN01:2011 and demonstrate that the standards shown for Environmental 
Zone E2 in Table 2 will be met.  

 

(20) Obstacle lights shall be placed on the Utili-light office and the storage shed on 
the south edge of the site (as shown on approved drawing Chick001 Rev D). 
These obstacle lights must be steady state red lights with an intensity of 200 
candelas. Periods of illumination of obstacle lights, obstacle light locations and 

17



obstacle light photometric performance must all be in accordance with the 
requirements of 'CAP168 Licensing of Aerodromes' (available at 
www.caa.co.uk/srg/aerodrome). Reason: Permanent illuminated obstacle 
lights are required on the development to avoid endangering the safe 
movement of aircraft and the operation of Southampton Airport. 

 

(21) Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The submitted plan shall include details of: 

 
(i) management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the 
site which may be attractive to nesting, roosting and “loafing” birds. The 
management plan shall comply with Advice Note 8 ‘Potential Bird Hazards 
from Building Design’: http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2014/02/AN08-Birds-Building-Design-Oct-2007.pdf  

 
(ii) maintenance of planted and landscaped areas, particularly in terms of 
height and species of plants that are allowed to grow. Berry bearing species 
should be dispersed throughout the site and represent no more than 15% of 
the total planting scheme. 

 
The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved on 
completion of the development and shall remain in force for the life of the 
buildings. No subsequent alterations to the plan are to take place unless first 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The Bird Hazard Management Plan must ensure and confirm that flat/shallow 
pitched roofs be constructed to allow access to all areas by foot using 
permanent fixed access stairs ladders or similar. The owner/occupier must not 
allow gulls, to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks must be made weekly 
or sooner if bird activity dictates, during the breeding season. Outside of the 
breeding season gull activity must be monitored and the roof checked 
regularly to ensure that gulls do not utilise the roof. Any gulls found nesting, 
roosting or loafing must be dispersed by the owner/occupier when detected or 
when requested by Southampton Airside Operations staff. In some instances it 
may be necessary to contact the Airside Operations staff before bird dispersal 
takes place. The owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the 
roof. 
 
The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The 
owner/occupier must obtain the appropriate licences where applicable from 
Natural England before the removal of nests and eggs. 

 
Reason: It is necessary to manage the development in order to minimise its 
attractiveness to birds which could endanger the safe movement of aircraft 
and the operation of Southampton Airport. 

 

(22) No vehicles with a gross vehicle weight exceeding 7.5 tonnes shall enter or 
exit the site or operate on the site except between the hours of 0600 and 2200 
hours on Mondays to Fridays, 0700 to 1500 on Saturdays and not at all on 

18

http://www.caa.co.uk/srg/aerodrome
http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/02/AN08-Birds-Building-Design-Oct-2007.pdf
http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/02/AN08-Birds-Building-Design-Oct-2007.pdf


Sundays or on Bank and Public holidays, unless otherwise carried out in 
accordance with an emergency out of hours access strategy approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. Such a strategy shall include details of 
the out of hours service, the nature, operations and level of movements 
associated with it, as well as mitigation measures to limit the impact upon the 
amenity of neighbouring residential occupiers. Reason: In the interests of the 
protection of the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring residential uses. 

 

(23) The development hereby permitted must not be brought into use until the 
areas shown on the approved plan (Drawing No. Chick001 Rev D) for the 
parking of vehicles in connection with the development shall have been made 
available, surfaced and marked out. The parking areas must thereafter be 
retained for this purpose for the lifetime of the development and in a condition 
to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. Reason: In the interests of 
highway safety.  

 

(24) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until a turning 
space has been provided within the site to enable all vehicles to enter and 
leave in a forward gear. The turning space shall subsequently be retained and 
kept available for such purposes at all times. Reason: In the interests of 
highway safety. 

 

(25) The development hereby approved shall be used only for the purposes of 
open storage within the B8 use class of the Schedule to the Town and Country 
Planning [Use Classes] Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that 
Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 
without modification. For the avoidance of doubt, the buildings and structures 
hereby approved shall be utilised only for purposes that are ancillary to this 
use. Reason: In the interests of highway safety and local amenity.  

 

(26) The development must accord with the submitted Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment (ref: “9533_AIA.001 Rev A”) and Planting Plan (ref: “194_PP_01 
Rev B”). Tree Protection must be addressed as per the Tree Protection Plan 
enclosed within the report. No excavation, demolition or development related 
works shall commence until evidence has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority to demonstrate that the tree protection 
measures have been installed, as detailed in the Tree Protection Plan. Once 
approved, no access by vehicles or placement of goods, chemicals, fuels, soil 
or other materials shall take place within the fenced area. Tree protection 
measures shall be retained in their approved form for the full duration of the 
work. Reason: To retain and protect the existing treescape in the interests of 
the amenity of the locality.  

 
(27) No construction or demolition related activities or deliveries to the site shall 

take place during the construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 
1800 Mondays to Fridays or 0800 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on 
Sundays or Bank Holidays. Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers 
of nearby dwellings.  

 

19



(28) No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source shall 
take place during the demolition, construction and fitting out process. Reason: 
To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.  

 
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough council take a positive approach to 
the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a 
positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner. 
 
Note to Applicant: Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that 
a crane may be required during construction. Your attention is therefore drawn to 
the requirement within the British Standard ‘Code of practice for safe use of cranes’ 
for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close 
proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained further in Advice Note 4, ‘Cranes and 
Other Construction Issues’, available at 
http://www.aoa.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf  
  
Note to Applicant: The application includes the proposed addition of gates onto 
the public right of way (Eastleigh Footpath No. 49). You will need to contact 
Hampshire County Council Countryside Service prior to the gates being installed to 
ensure that they are not deemed an obstruction to the highway. The Countryside 
Service can be contacted at Hampshire County Council, Castle Avenue, 
Winchester, Hampshire, SO23 8LU, or on 0300 555 1391. 
 
Note to Applicant: You are advised to contact Network Rail Asset Protection 
London South East at AssetProtectionsussex@networkrail.co.uk prior to any works 
commencing on site, and also to agree an Asset Protection Agreement to enable 
them to approve detailed works where required. More information is available from 
Network Rail’s website at: www.networkrail.co.uk/aspx/1538.aspx.  
 
Note to Applicant: The application includes the provision of vehicle washing 
facilities. Southern Water has advised that areas used for vehicle washing should 
only be connected to the foul sewer after consultation with them. You are advised, 
therefore, to discuss the matter further with Southern Water’s Trade Eflluent 
Inspectors. Further information can be found at: 
https://www.southernwater.co.uk/BusinessCustomers/wasteServices/tradeEffluent/  
 
Note to Applicant: Southern Water has advised that a formal application for 
connection to the public sewerage system will be required in order to service this 
development. You should contact Southern Water by post at Southern Water, 
Sparrowgrove House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire, SO21 2SW, by 
telephone on 0330 303 0119 or visit their website at www.southernwater.co.uk  
 
 
 
 
Report: 
 
1. This application has been referred to Committee due it being deemed to be 

controversial in light of the planning history associated with this site.  

20

http://www.aoa.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf
mailto:AssetProtectionsussex@networkrail.co.uk
http://www.networkrail.co.uk/aspx/1538.aspx
https://www.southernwater.co.uk/BusinessCustomers/wasteServices/tradeEffluent/
http://www.southernwater.co.uk/


 
Description of application and background to proposals 
 
2. The application seeks full planning approval for the use of the development 

site for the purposes of open storage with ancillary offices, storage buildings, 
and a vehicle wash facility. The proposals also include associated access 
arrangements, as well as parking, drainage and landscaping provisions. 
 

3. The site is proposed to be occupied by Blaze Construction as well as its 
associated companies, Allround Plant and Utili-light, all of which fall under the 
Kells Holdings parent company who would also occupy one of the ancillary 
offices on the site. The Kells Group / Blaze Construction are a ground working 
company who are involved in the construction of new build housing across the 
south-east. Allround Plant, who own the majority of the plant utilised by Blaze 
Construction, currently operate out of West Horton Farm in Bishopstoke. Utili-
light is a specialist electrical and civil engineering company within the 
construction, infrastructure and utility sectors based at Quob Yard on Titchfield 
Lane in Fareham. Both Allround Plant operatives and Utili-light take 
instructions from Blaze Construction’s principal offices at 93 Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh. 
 

4. The proposals seek to bring these associated companies together onto a 
single site in order to allow for the centralisation and consolidation of their 
linked operations, as well as the improvement of the logistics surrounding 
them which includes reducing the necessity to travel between the 
aforementioned sites. The application also sets out that the development 
would allow the company to have the ability to expand their business in future.  
 

5. The proposals include the provision of extensive areas of open storage which 
will be laid to hardstanding. These areas will be utilised for the storing of inert 
buildings materials associated with the development sites upon which the 
company are engaged. The submitted Planning Statement explains that these 
materials are delivered direct to development sites from suppliers, with such 
deliveries incorporating a proportion of surplus materials which are needed for 
future remediation and snagging. It is these surplus materials that would be 
delivered to and held at the application site, which could be for a period of a 
number of years depending on the extent and timescales associated with the 
particular development to which they relate. These materials would be stored 
at a height of no more than 6 metres and are not sold or made available to 
third parties.   
 

6. The Planning Statement sets out that Allround Plant only supplies plant to 
companies under the Kells Holding banner, with 95% of the plant that they 
operate being located on working development sites. The smaller or more 
bespoke plant is moved around more frequently and will, on occasion, need to 
be returned to the development site for inspection and / or servicing. The Utili-
light business operates in a similar manner to Blaze Construction in that 
materials are delivered to development sites and only excess stock would be 
returned to the application site; all plant and operatives would start and finish 
from the application site each day.  

21



 
7. In addition to the areas of open storage, the proposals include the provision of 

a total of 6 buildings which range from 150 to 495sqm in footprint and 6.59 to 
8.645 metres in height and which would provide office space, storage and an 
enclosed vehicle wash down facility, to serve the aforementioned companies. 
Four of the buildings would be clustered in the northern part of the site with the 
remaining two being situated in the south-east and south-western corners 
respectively. These buildings are functional in terms of their form and design 
and will be comprised of green-coloured metal cladding to their elevations, 
with the office buildings and the larger store to the north of the site also having 
sedum system green roofs as part of the ecological mitigation and 
enhancements proposed as part of the development.  

 

8. The existing access which serves the site would be upgraded as part of the 
development such as to ensure that it is suitable for the level and type of 
vehicle movements associated with the proposed end use. This access will 
comprise of a simple priority junction onto Chickenhall Lane to the north-west 
leading to an internal access road which runs parallel with the south-western 
boundary of the adjacent Waste Treatment Works. Turning space for vehicles 
will be provided internally within the site such that all vehicles are able to enter 
and leave in a forward gear and on-site parking would be available for staff, 
operatives and visitors.  

 

9. The proposals require the removal of approximately 575sqm of woodland and 
scrub on the northern boundary of the site in order to facilitate the 
development. The application is supported by a detailed landscaping plan 
which includes the provision of additional buffer planting within the site to its 
north and eastern parts, as well as an additional 400sqm of woodland on an 
existing triangular shaped parcel of grassland to the east of the site through 
which the definitive route of the Itchen Way public footpath (Eastleigh Footpath 
No. 49) runs.  

 

10. The application is accompanied by the following reports and technical 
assessments. Where necessary these documents have been prepared to take 
account of the approved Energy Recovery Centre development on the 
adjacent land (see below):  

 

 Air Quality Impact Assessment 

 Arboricultural Impact Assessment 

 Archaeological Assessment  

 Ecological Impact Assessment 

 Flood Risk Assessment 

 Geo-Environmental Desk Study (Contaminated Land) 

 Habitats Regulations Screening Report 

 Hydrological Impact Assessment 

 Landscape Appraisal 

 Lighting Strategy 

 Lighting Impact Assessment 

 Noise Assessment Report 

22



 Transport Assessment 
 
11. The application was screened by the Council at pre-application stage (April 

2017) under the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2011 (as amended) in regards to the matter of 
whether or not the development would constitute ‘EIA development’ for the 
purposes of these regulations.  
 

12. The Council determined that the project did not constitute Schedule 1 
development and did not exceed the screening thresholds for Schedule 2 
development (urban development projects with an overall site area exceeding 
5 hectares). A range of supporting information including a hydrological 
assessment, air quality assessment, and ecological surveys was however 
stipulated as being required to accompany any subsequent planning 
application. Accordingly, the Council consider that the proposed development 
is not ‘EIA development’ and an Environmental Statement is not therefore 
required.  

 

13. For the avoidance of doubt, whilst the 2011 EIA Regulations have been 
revoked and replaced by the Town and Country Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 in the intervening period (16 May 
2017), the transitional arrangements set out in regulation 76 of the 2017 
Regulations are deemed to apply. As the Screening Opinion was issued prior 
to their replacement, therefore, the 2011 Regulations continue to be applicable 
to the development proposal. 

 

14. Screening was also undertaken by the Council, as the competent authority, to 
establish whether a full Habitats Regulations Assessment is required. It was 
concluded that, with the mitigation proposed and conditions to control impacts, 
no significant likely impacts on any European Designated sites would occur as 
a result of the development, either alone or in-combination, and an 
Appropriate Assessment for the planning application is therefore not required, 
in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 
2010 (as amended).  

 
The site and its surroundings 
 
15. The application site comprises of a parcel of arable/pasture land with a small 

area of woodland to the north, which is situated on the eastern urban fringe of 
Eastleigh, to the south-east of Tower Industrial Estate. The site, which has not 
been subject to any recent activity, extends to an area of approximately 3.17 
hectares and is bound by the railway line to its south-western side, with the 
existing Waste Water Treatment Works being situated to the north. The site’s 
eastern boundary runs in close proximity with a Public Right of Way (Eastleigh 
Footpath No. 49) which continues around its north-eastern perimeter and on 
towards the Treatment Works. Beyond this Right of Way, there is undeveloped 
agricultural land, as well as the River Itchen which is subject to a number of 
local, national and international nature conservation designations.  
 

23



16. The site falls within the urban edge and forms the eastern section of the 
designated ‘Pirelli Land’ as set out within the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
Review 2001-2011, with the site being subject to Saved Policy 112.E which 
allocates this land for employment development within Use Classes B1(b), 
B1(c), B2 and B8. The site as a whole is subject to an extant planning 
permission for an energy recovery centre and associated solar array which 
was granted by Hampshire County Council in 2014 (see the below section on 
relevant planning history).  

 

17. In respect of its topography, the site is fairly flat although ground levels do fall 
in an easterly direction. The railway line to the south is also set in an elevated 
position relative to the application site with a graded section of banking 
comprised of trees and scrub in between. There are further trees situated to 
the north within a small area of woodland, with the boundary to the east with 
the adjacent footpath being marked by a post and wire fence with hedging and 
trees, which become more frequent moving along this route, adjacent to the 
site’s north-eastern perimeter. 

 

18. The site is served by a single vehicular access onto the private section of 
Chickenhall Lane to the north-west. Chickenhall Lane also serves the Waste 
Treatment Works and the neighbouring Industrial Estate, as well as Nos. 1 
and 2 Chickenhall Cottages, a single pair of semi-detached dwellings which lie 
to the immediate north to the site’s point of access.  

 
Relevant Planning History 
 
19. As noted above, the site is subject to an extant planning permission which was 

granted on 3 November 2014 by Hampshire County Council (HCC) for the 
following development: 

 
S/13/73507 - Erection of an Energy Recovery Centre (comprising an 
Advanced Conversion Technology (ACT) 8-12 Mwe pyrolysis plant and an 
Anaerobic Digestion 2-3 Mwe facility with an integrated education centre)  and 
a 1 Mwe Photovoltaic Solar Array together with access, landscaping and 
associated works. 

 
20. The site of the current application occupies the majority, although not all, of 

the eastern part of the land the subject of this permission where the 
photovoltaic solar array element of the proposals was to be located, with the 
Energy Recovery Centre (ERC) being situated on the land to the west. There 
remains an irregular shaped parcel of land in between these two areas, which 
the applicant has stated is likely to come forward for further industrial 
development in future. There are, however, currently no specific proposals for 
this and any such development would need to be considered as part of a 
separate planning application.  

 
21. The applicant has indicated that their intention is to still deliver the ERC and 

they are in the process of implementing the existing consent, with pre-
commencement conditions having been discharged by HCC and access works 
having recently been undertaken. However, they have advised that due to the 

24



changes in the solar market and the absence of funding for this aspect of the 
previous proposals, this element will not be delivered. 

 
Representations Received 
 
22. A total of 10 third party letters of representation have been received in relation 

to this application. These raised objections to the proposals on the following 
grounds: 

 

 The proposals adding to existing traffic and congestion problems on 
Chickenhall Lane and the surrounding area.  

 The suitability of Chickenhall Lane and the Bishopstoke Road 
roundabout for HGV usage. 

 Chickenhall Lane already being used as a lorry park in the PM peak 
period causing highway obstructions.  

 Highway safety concerns and existing issues for emergency services 
being unable to access properties and businesses along Chickenhall 
Lane.  

 
Consultation Responses 
 
23. HCC Archaeology – No objection subject to conditions in respect of the need 

for a programme of archaeological investigation, excavation and recording.  
 
24. Tree Officer – No arboricultural objection subject to a condition requiring that 

the development is carried out in accordance with the submitted Arboricultural 
Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan.  

 
25. Network Rail – Advised that the developer must ensure that the proposal, 

both during construction and after completion of works on site, complies with 
Network Rails requirements for the safe operation of the railway and the 
protection of their adjoining land. These requirements cover matters such as 
future maintenance, drainage, plant and materials, scaffolding, piling, fencing, 
noise and vibration, lighting, and vehicle incursion. Network Rail advises that 
the developer should contact them prior to starting any works to agree an 
Asset Protection Agreement.  

 
26. NATS Safeguarding – The proposed development has been examined from a 

technical safeguarding aspect and does not conflict with safeguarding criteria. 
Accordingly, no safeguarding objection is raised to the proposal.  

 
27. Eastleigh Ramblers – The application affects the setting of Footpath No. 49 

Eastleigh (The Itchen Way). We consider that these works are unlikely to be 
carried out without adversely affecting the surface of the path and there should 
be a condition requiring the reinstatement and improvement of the surface of 
the path to the satisfaction of the highway authority. The construction of a 
swale adjacent to the right of way is likely to lead to more ground water 
permeating in the direction of the right of way and hence a raised and better 
surfaced path than exists at the moment will be required. The comments of 
HCC Countryside Services should also be sought on the application.  

25



 
No further comments were received following the receipt of amended plans.  

 
HCC Countryside Services 
 
Initial comments: 
 
28. Objection – It would appear that the public right of way Eastleigh Footpath 49 

will be directly affected or obstructed by the proposals; amendments should be 
submitted showing the definitive line of the right of way and detailing how the 
footpath will be dealt with by the proposals. If the right of way is to be diverted, 
then this should be detailed. The proposals will also necessitate surface 
changes/improvements to the public right of way; these will require the 
consent of the highway authority. Details of the proposed path specification 
should be outlined within the proposals and should be in-line with our path 
design standards. 

 
Following the receipt of amended plans denoting the definitive route of the right of 
way and this to be uninterrupted by the development: 
 
29. The information provided is sufficient to address our concerns and we 

therefore remove our objection to the application.  We note that the application 
proposes the addition of gates onto the public right of way; the Applicant will 
need to contact this office prior to installation to ensure that they are not 
deemed an obstruction to the highway. 

 
Environmental Health –  
 
Initial comments: 
 
Noise impacts: 
 
30. The submitted Noise Assessment Report covers two aspects of potential 

operational impact; noise emission from the site and noise emission from 
associated transportation on access roads.  

 
31. In respect of operations on the site, the report does not assess the likely noise 

emission from the site. Rather it sets acceptable criteria for fixed plant (Table 
5), which is accepted and criteria for total noise emission from the site (Table 
6) which is not accepted. Fixed plant noise can be controlled by a design 
based condition. The control of total noise from the site by a performance type 
condition, whilst theoretically possible, would in practice pose many practical 
difficulties. 

 
32. It would be better practice for the assessment to have considered the likely 

activity in both day and night periods and predicted likely noise levels. In the 
absence of such information, it is difficult to advise on the likely impact, 
however, pragmatically, given the distance between the site and residential 
properties, I would think that the site is unlikely to pose a particular noise 
concern during the daytime. The night time periods are of more concern and 

26



clarification should be requested about likely traffic movements on Chickenhall 
Lane outside normal business hours. 

 
Air quality impacts: 
 
33. The submitted report considers the development phase impacts (dust soiling) 

and the operational phase impacts on human health. I am satisfied with the 
assessment of construction phase impacts in respect of nuisance. I would 
recommend that any consent is subject to the usual conditions controlling the 
impact of dust emissions from construction. For information, the CEMP should 
be developed after reflection upon the recommendations set out in this report, 
especially those set out in Appendix F.  

 
34. The report concludes that the operational impact upon air quality considered 

from a human health perspective should be negligible. I am content with this 
conclusion. As always I would recommend that the Local Planning Authority 
checks that the traffic data used for assessments is consistent with the final 
traffic assessment data accepted by the authority’s traffic expert. There is a 
discrepancy between the data in the air quality report and that used in the 
acoustic report.  

 
Comments following receipt of the following updated information: 
 
35. The consultant has answered the questions regarding traffic flow. I think if 

operational activity is confined to access at night for emergency call outs that it 
is unlikely to pose much concern in terms of amenity in this location.   
 

36. As the original noise report refers to ‘fixed’ plant, I would recommend that any 
consent is subject to a condition to require the details of this to be approved by 
the LPA prior to installation. Further conditions are also recommended to 
require a noise management plan for the site and a final detailed lighting 
strategy to be submitted to the LPA for approval, as well as the usual 
conditions regarding the control of construction impacts during the 
development phase. 

 
37. Southern Water Services – Southern Water provided a plan showing the 

approximate position of the public foul rising mains, sewers and water mains 
within the access to the site. They advised that their exact position must, 
however, be determined on site prior to the commencing of any works and the 
development should adhere to a number of easement requirements, with 
infrastructure being protected during development.   

 

38. An informative was recommended in regards to the need for a formal 
application to be made separately to Southern Water for a connection to the 
public foul sewer. Requirements in regards to surface water drainage were 
also outlined and it was highlighted that land uses such as general 
hardstanding that may be subject to oil/petrol spillages should be drained by 
means of oil trap gullies or petrol/oil interceptors.  

 

27



39. The proposed development site is located adjacent to Chickenhall Eastleigh 
Waste Treatment Works and the very nature of sewage treatment works 
means that they may not be ideal neighbours to sensitive land uses. It is 
therefore requested that the precautionary principle is adopted by LPAs to 
avoid potential land-use conflict. This can be achieved by appropriate buffer 
zones around the treatment works or funding being secured (via S106) 
towards measures required to control odours.  

 

40. Natural England – No objection subject to appropriate mitigation being 
secured to prevent the development having an adverse effect on the integrity 
of the River Itchen Special Area of Conservation or damaging the interest 
features for which the River Itchen Site of Special Scientific Interest has been 
notified. These mitigation measures should be secured by condition and 
include the submission of a Construction Environment Management Plan to 
incorporate a Dust Management Plan, as well as construction and operational 
drainage measures to offset any impacts of surface water run-off that may 
contaminate the River Itchen in line with the submitted drainage strategy.  

 

41. Natural England also welcomes the measures outlined in the Ecological 
Impact Assessment to mitigate/compensate for the loss of woodland, plus 
providing additional enhancements. It is advised that these are secured via 
planning condition or similar.  

 

42. Hampshire County Council Planning (Minerals and Waste) – No objection. 
 
Hampshire County Council Highways –  
 
Initial comments: 
 
Trip Generation and Developer Contributions: 
 
43. As outlined in the submitted Transport Assessment, the generated traffic from 

the site will be 91 vehicles per day, with peak period flows of 8 vehicles in the 
AM and 7 vehicles in the PM given the general operating hours of the 
business. When considered on an individual site basis, there will therefore be 
limited effect on the local highway network with increases of between 0.1 and 
0.2% in traffic flows passing through local road / junctions when considering 
overall traffic flow pre and post development. Clearly this cannot be 
considered to be severe and as such in line with the NPPF, a reason for 
refusal on highway grounds.  

 
44. Developer contributions are required for mitigation measures to improve 

infrastructure on the highway network. This would go towards works for the 
improvement of Chickenhall Lane/the B3037/Bishopstoke Road mini-
roundabout which will contribute to the improvement of highway conditions on 
the parts of the network affected by traffic associated with the development.  

 
Parking:  
 

28



45. Under the now withdrawn HCC Parking Standards (withdrawn April 2013) a 
maximum figure of 38 spaces was suggested. Plans outline 28 spaces, which 
fall below this figure, however given the information on proposed staff 
numbers, and also the fact that additional staff arriving to pick up plant could 
park in the spaces vacated by such vehicles, on-site parking is considered to 
be sufficient. Additionally, given the distance of the site from the public 
highway, any overspill parking is unlikely to be a concern to the highway 
authority. Clarification should however be sought that parking is open for all 
users, and not just certain designated occupants. Clarification should also be 
sought as to how many cycles the proposed cycle racks are able to store.  

 
Waste pickup: 
 
46. The current plans detail one location for waste on site but it is not clear 

whether this is for all users or if each individual user would have their own. 
Additional refuse tracking may therefore be required to show how refuse 
vehicles would reach alternative positions.  

 
Comments following receipt of the further information / clarification requested: 
 
47. No objection.  
 
HCC Flood and Water Management Team –  
 
Initial comments: 
 
48. Noted that the site forms part of the consented Energy Recovery Centre (ERC) 

site. If this scheme is approved, the ERC surface water drainage strategy will 
need to be amended to satisfactorily drain that development.  

 
49. Clarification and additional information was also requested in regards to the 

submitted Flood Risk Assessment in respect of why drainage via the existing 
sewer is proposed in addition to infiltration, details of ground water levels in 
the area to allow for the full assessment of the impact of the development, 
evidence that the impact of climate change of the main river has been 
assessed, evidence to show how the access to the site will be drained, and 
additional storm testing for the proposed surface water drainage system.  

 
50. In addition, information/clarification was requested in respect of: evidence that 

permission had been obtained to discharge into the sewer; evidence that the 
correct level of water treatment exists in the system in relation to the 
discharging of water into a Special Area of Conservation; existing and 
proposed run-off rate calculations; details of maintenance regimes for the 
surface water drainage system; and evidence that exceedance flows have 
been considered in the event of the pipe being non-operational.  

 
Following the receipt of the requested clarification / further information: 
 
51. No objection.  
 

29



52. Biodiversity Officer – The comments of the Council’s appointed Ecologist are 
awaited in regards to this application. Members will be updated on this at the 
committee.  

 
53. Southampton Airport – No objection subject to conditions requiring the 

submission of a Bird Hazard Management Plan prior to the commencement of 
development, as well as to require obstacle lighting to be installed on the 
buildings at the southern end of the site to avoid endangering the safe 
movement of aircraft and the operation of Southampton Airport. An informative 
was also requested to be applied in regards to the potential use of cranes and 
the need to consult with the aerodrome before the erecting of them.   

 
54. Direct Services – No comments to make at this stage.  
 
55. Environment Agency – The Environment Agency confirmed that they have 

no comments to make on the proposals.  
 
Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site 
 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Allocated Employment Site (Policy 112.E of EBLPR 2001-2011) 

 Adjacent to Public Right of Way (Eastleigh Footpath 49) 

 Within Natural England Impact Risk Zone 

 HCC Safeguarded Site – Wastewater Treatment Works and Waste 
Processing 

 Within Minerals Safeguarding Area 

 Within Airport Safeguarding Zone 

 Within HRA (Habitats Regulations Assessment) Screening Area 

 Adjacent to or in Nearby Proximity to a Special Area of Conservation 
(SAC), Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and Site of Importance 
for Nature Conservation 

 
Legislative provisions, development plan saved policies, emerging local plan 
policies, SPD’s and National planning policy 
 
Legislative provisions: 
 
56. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) 

of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a local planning 
authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
The Development Plan 
 
57. At the current time the Development Plan for the borough comprises the 

Saved Policies within the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) 
and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (October 2013). 

 

The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 
 

30



58. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 was adopted in May 
2006. In November 2008, the Council submitted a list of proposed Saved 
Policies to the Secretary of State with a request that they be saved until they 
could be replaced by a new Local Development Framework. The policies 
detailed below were saved and are considered to be of relevance to the 
development proposals. 

 
59. The site forms part of the land subject to Saved Policy 112.E which allocates it 

for employment development within Use Classes B1(b), B1(c), B2 and B8 
providing that any such proposals meet a number of specified criteria, 
including: that land is reserved for the Chickenhall Lane Link Road and a 
contribution is made towards this unless a transport assessment demonstrates 
that this is not necessary; the capacity of the Itchen floodplain is maintained 
and it conforms to policy 40.ES; it does not adversely affect the amenity of 
neighbouring residents; and, it does not adversely affect the Itchen Valley 
Special Area of Conservation (SAC), Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 
or Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC).  

 
60. In addition to 112.E, the following saved policies are also of relevance to the 

proposals: 22.NC (Sites of Special Scientific Interest), 23.NC (Sites of 
Importance for Nature Conservation), 25.NC and 26.NC (Biodiversity), 28.ES 
(Waste Collection and Recycling), 29.ES (Noise and Vibration), 32.ES 
(Pollution Control), 33.ES (Local Air Quality Management), 35.ES 
(Contaminated Land), 36.ES (Lighting), 43.ES (Flooding and Erosion), 45.ES 
(Drainage), 59.BE (Promoting Good Design), 60.BE (Road and Rail Corridors), 
63.BE (Car Park Design), 100.T, 101.T and 102.T (Transport and New 
Development), 104.T (Parking), 167.LB and 168.LB (Archaeology), 191.IN 
(Developers Contributions).  

 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013  
 
61. The site lies within a minerals and waste consultation area to which Policy 15 

(Safeguarding – Mineral Resources) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste 
Plan 2013 (HMWP) applies. This policy seeks to protect potentially 
economically viable mineral resource deposits from needless and 
unnecessary sterilisation and encourage the recovery, where possible, of 
potential mineral resources prior to development.  

 
62. In addition, the site lies adjacent to an established Waste Treatment Works 

(WTW) and as such Policy 26 (Safeguarding – Waste Infrastructure) of the 
HMWP is also applicable. This policy seeks to safeguard waste management 
infrastructure that provides strategic capacity, against redevelopment and 
inappropriate encroachment to minimise the impact of development on nearby 
sites that may be incompatible.  

 
Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 
63. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination 

in July 2014. In the Inspector’s subsequent Report (11 February 2015), this 
Plan was found to have a number of shortcomings in relation to housing need, 

31



identified housing requirements and housing supply, sufficient that it was 
found to be unsound. The Council have ceased work on this Plan and are in 
the process of preparing a new plan to the period up to 2036 (see below). The 
Plan has, however, not been withdrawn and therefore continues to be a 
material consideration. As the Plan and the policies contained within it are not 
being progressed in their current form, however, extremely limited weight can 
be attributed to it in the determination of this application. 

 
64. Within the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 the site 

continues to fall inside of the urban edge and is allocated under Policy E9 for 
uses including those for employment purposes as part of the larger Eastleigh 
River Side allocation. Policy E10 also sought to allocate the land to the 
opposing side of the railway land for employment uses, with the supporting 
text for these policies (Paragraph 6.6.52) highlighting that junction 
improvements would be necessary, inter alia, at the Chickenhall Lane and 
Bishopstoke Road junction to facilitate development associated with these 
allocations.  

 
65. In addition to these provisions, the following policies within this Plan are also 

of relevance to the application proposal: S1 (Sustainable development); S2 
(New development), S4 (Employment provision), S5 (Green infrastructure), S7 
(Transport infrastructure), S11 (Nature conservation), DM1 (General criteria for 
new development), DM4 (Flood Risk), DM5 (Sustainable surface water 
management and watercourse management), DM7 (Pollution), DM9 (Nature 
Conservation), DM10 (Heritage assets), DM11 (New employment in urban 
areas), DM23 (General development criteria – transport), DM24 (Parking), 
DM37 (Funding infrastructure). 

 
66. As noted above, a new emerging development plan (the draft Eastleigh 

Borough Local Plan 2016-2036) is currently being prepared and on the 11 
December 2017 the Council approved the draft plan for public consultation, 
subject to the finalising of the wording and content as well as the completion of 
technical studies, and the completion and updating of the evidence base. It is 
anticipated that the draft local plan will be out for consultation in Spring 2018. 
This plan is a material consideration in the determination of this application, 
however in light of its status, it is considered that only very limited weight can 
be attributed to it.  

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
67. The following supplementary planning documents are of relevance to the 

application: 
 

 Biodiversity (December 2009) 

 Planning Obligations (July 2008, updated 2010) 
 

National Planning Policy Framework: 
 

32



68. At a national level, The National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the 
‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications.  

 
69. The NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to 

the achievement of sustainable development (Para. 6). Sustainable 
development is defined as containing three dimensions: economic, social and 
environmental (Para. 7) which should not be taken in isolation, because they 
are mutually dependent (Para. 8). The proposals are considered under each of 
these headings below.  
 

70. Paragraph 14 of the Framework sets out a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, with Paragraph 197 requiring that in assessing and 
determining development proposals, local planning authorities should apply 
this presumption. In doing so, due weight should be given to relevant policies 
in existing local plans according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF 
(Para. 215). 
 

71. For decision taking, the aforementioned presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, as set out in paragraph 14, means: 
 

 Approving development proposals that accord with the development plan 
without delay; and 

 Where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-
of-date, granting permission unless: - any adverse impacts of doing so 
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole; or 

 Specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be 
restricted.  

 
Planning Practice Guidance  
 
72. Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the consideration 

of planning applications. Whilst not an exhaustive list, the following sections 
are deemed to be of relevance to this application: air quality; design; 
determining a planning application; flood risk; contamination; minerals; natural 
environment; noise; open space, public rights of way and local green space; 
planning obligations; travel plans, transport assessments and statements; 
water supply, wastewater and water quality. 

 
Assessment of proposal:  
 
The Principle of Development 
 
73. The site is subject to Saved Policy 112.E (the Pirelli Land Special Policy Area) 

of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011. This policy allocates 
the site and adjoining land for employment development within use classes 
B1(b), B1(c), B2 and B8 subject to the specifics of the particular proposal 
being acceptable in other respects (notably transport, ecological and amenity 
impacts).  

33



 
74. The proposed development is considered to conform to these specified uses 

with it being for open storage with ancillary buildings which is deemed to fall 
within the B8 use class. The principle of development on the site is, in 
planning policy terms, therefore considered to be acceptable and in 
accordance with the development plan; it would also not prejudice the 
development of the remainder of the allocated site. The granting of any 
planning permission is, however, subject to the specific aspects and impacts 
of the particular proposal put forward being deemed to be appropriate. Those 
which are of relevance to this application are considered in more detail below.  

 
Economic and social sustainability 
 
75. One of the core planning principles of the NPPF is that planning should 

proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the 
homes, business and industrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places 
that the country needs (Paragraph 17). This paragraph goes on to state that 
every effort should be made to objectively identify and then meet the housing, 
business and other development needs of an area and that plans should set 
out a clear strategy for allocating sufficient land which is suitable for 
development in their area, taking account of the needs of the residential and 
business communities.  

 
76. The application site is, as noted above, a site which is allocated for 

employment uses within the adopted Local Plan (Saved Policy 112.E). The 
proposed development conforms to this allocation and, as such, its delivery for 
this purpose would contribute towards the meeting of the Borough’s 
employment needs. The proposal would also serve to replace the solar array 
element of the approved Energy Recovery Centre which in itself would have 
delivered very limited employment opportunities. The development would 
therefore see a greater intensity of both employment use and employment 
opportunities created on this site.  

 
77. The application is supported by an Economic Statement which forms part of 

the submitted Planning Statement. This sets out that the Kells Group of 
companies currently supports around 300 jobs, with Blaze Construction 
directly employing or contracting over 200 operatives, making it a significant 
employer within the Borough that makes a notable contribution to the local 
economy. This statement also details that the development would see what 
would be a significant financial investment in the site and allow the business to 
meet both its existing and future needs and thereby operate and continue to 
grow in a sustainable manner. In addition, the temporary construction phase of 
the development would create approximately 15 FTE jobs, with further 
employment being created through the necessary provision of the associated 
infrastructure.  

 
78. These factors are considered to represent social and economic benefits in 

respect of the proposals which are considered to attract significant weight in 
the determination of the application.   

 

34



Environmental Sustainability 
 
79. The size and location of the application site is such that there are a number of 

environmental sustainability considerations and impacts that need to be taken 
into account. These include: 

 

 The layout, design and impact of the development on the surrounding 
area.  

 Residential amenity 

 Nature conservation interests and drainage 

 Trees 

 Noise 

 Air Quality 

 Lighting  

 Contaminated land 

 Archaeology 

 Minerals and waste considerations 

 Transport matters, highway safety and accessibility 
 

80. These are each discussed in more detail below.  
 
Layout, design and impact of the development on the character of the area: 
 
81. Saved Policy 59.BE requires that development takes full and proper account 

of the context of the site including the character and appearance of the locality 
and that it is appropriate in a number of regards including its massing, scale, 
layout, design, siting and density. This local plan policy is considered to be 
consistent with the NPPF. In particular: paragraph 17 which sets out the core 
planning principles that should underpin decision taking, including that 
planning should “take account of the different role and character of different 
areas, promoting the vitality of our main urban areas”; and, Section 7 
Requiring good design, which emphasises that the Government attaches great 
importance to the design of the built environment and that good design is a 
key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and 
should contribute positively to making places better for people.  

 
82. The application proposes the development of the site for the purposes of open 

storage which would necessitate both extensive areas of hardstanding as well 
as a range of ancillary offices and storage structures. The proposals also 
incorporate access works, landscaping and drainage provisions, as well as 
parking and external lighting. The existing site is a greenfield site comprised of 
an agricultural field which is devoid of development and includes an area of 
woodland to its northern extent. The proposals would therefore invariably have 
a significant impact upon its present character, with it changing from what is 
currently open land to a site where built form and hardstanding would be 
dominant. The development would also necessitate the removal of a 
proportion of the woodland.  

 

35



83. The site is, however, an allocated site within the Council’s Local Plan and as 
such is considered to have capacity for development of the nature of that 
proposed as part of this application. Intrinsic within such development is the 
necessity for the provision of a range of urbanising and what are inherently 
industrial features such as hardstanding, buildings, and external lighting as set 
out above and this much be acknowledged when considering the impact of the 
proposals on the character of the application site. The design of the buildings 
and the layout itself is necessarily functional, reflecting the nature and the 
needs of the end use and its occupiers. The buildings are however not 
deemed to be excessive in scale and their green coloured elevational cladding 
would help in reducing their potential visual prominence.  

 
84. Whilst the aforementioned impacts are accepted, it is still necessary for any 

development to also respond to and be sensitive to its surrounding context 
and, in this case, this incorporates not only the industrial uses to its north and 
north-western sides but also the adjacent public right of way and the green 
fields to the east and south. In this respect, the application is accompanied by 
both a landscaping scheme as well as a landscape appraisal which considers 
the likely effects of the proposed development on the quality, value and 
character of the landscape, which includes the effects on views from public 
vistas. The site is not subject to any statutory landscape designations and the 
submitted appraisal demonstrates that it is afforded good visual enclosure 
from tree cover along the northern boundary (with the sewage treatment works 
beyond), the railway line and embankment to the south, as well as from 
woodland and trees from longer range views from the east. There are however 
views into the site, to varying degrees, from the adjacent right of way which 
runs along its eastern boundary for a length of approximately 180m. Whilst the 
existing industrial buildings to the north-west are already glimpsed and provide 
a backdrop to proportions of this view which the consented Energy Recovery 
Centre would also add to, the much closer proximity of the proposed 
development to the right of way has the potential to impact adversely on 
walkers who utilise it.  

 
85. Whilst accepting that the site has approval for a solar array which, given this 

remains extant, can be taken as a baseline when considering such effects, it is 
deemed that given the material change in the nature of the use and intensity of 
development, additional mitigation is required. As such, the proposals include 
the provision of additional boundary planting and a landscape buffer along the 
eastern and north-eastern perimeter of the site adjacent to the public right of 
way. Along the more open section of this route, this will include a 1.8m high 
earth bank surmounted by a native hedge which will assist in screening views 
into the site from the footpath. The provision of additional woodland planting, 
to compensate for that to be lost to facilitate the proposals, will add a further 
layer of screening to a proportion of the eastern boundary and also strengthen 
the green infrastructure in the area. Once this mitigation has established, as 
set out in the submitted landscape appraisal, it is considered that the 
development will have no adverse effects on the landscape character of the 
Itchen Valley and only a minor adverse effect on the visual amenity of users of 
the public right of way in winter months for a short section of its length, which 
would then be negligible in summer.  

36



 
86. Taking account of all of the above factors, which include the site being an 

allocated site for employment uses within the Councils adopted Local Plan, it 
is considered that the development would not be unacceptable in terms of its 
layout, design or impact upon the character of the area. Conditions will be 
imposed in respect of the securing of the proposed landscaping arrangements 
and their future maintenance, as well as in regards to the height and nature of 
external storage and details of external materials and boundary treatments to 
ensure that these are each appropriate. There is, therefore, deemed to be no 
conflict with the relevant requirements of Saved Policy 59.BE of the adopted 
Local Plan or the aforementioned provisions of the NPPF in this respect.  

 
Residential amenity 
 
87. Saved Policy 59.BE (vii.) of the adopted Local Plan requires that development 

avoids unduly interfering, disturbing or conflicting with adjoining or nearby 
uses in a range of respects including through noise, fumes, dust, overlooking, 
loss of daylight or outlook, vibration, or from lighting. This policy is considered 
to be consistent with Paragraph 17 of the NPPF which sets out that planning 
should always seek to secure a good standard of amenity for all existing and 
future occupants of land and buildings. In addition Saved Policy 112.E, which 
allocates the site for industrial/employment development, specifically sets out 
that any such proposal should not adversely affect the amenity of the residents 
of Campbell Road.  

 
88. The matters of the impacts of the proposals in terms of noise, air quality and 

lighting are considered separately and in detail in the relevant sections below. 
In terms of the other residential amenity related impacts, it is considered that 
the proposals will be in compliance with the policy requirements set out above. 
With the exception of the point of access, the substantive majority of the site 
which includes the office buildings and other structures as well as the areas of 
open storage, are situated at a notable distance away from the nearest 
residential properties, both within Campbell Road as well as along Chickenhall 
Lane. As such and in light of this, it is not considered that undue overlooking, 
overbearing impact, loss of light, or loss of privacy will result from the 
development.  

 
Nature conservation interests and drainage  
 

Context and Habitats 
 
89. No statutory sites of nature conservation value occur within the boundary of 

the site itself. The River Itchen Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), 
however, lies approximately 15m from the site with the River Itchen Special 
Area of Conservation (SAC) being located approximately 100m to the south-
east. Stanford Meadows, a non-statutory designated Site of Importance for 
Nature Conservation (SINC) is also located around 30m to the east of the site 
boundary.  

 

37



90. The site is comprised of predominantly poor semi-improved grassland, tall 
ruderal and dense and scattered scrub. There is a section of broadleaved 
woodland located in the north of the site. Surrounding habitats include the 
remainder of this woodland, scrub, a pond, as well as marshy grassland 
adjoining the River Itchen to the east.  

 
Impacts upon internationally and nationally designated interests: 

 
91. As noted above, the application site lies within close proximity to the River 

Itchen SAC, which is also notified at a national level as a SSSI. Eastleigh 
Borough Council, as the competent authority under the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulation 2010 (as amended), must consider whether 
the proposed development would have a likely significant effect on the interest 
features of this European protected site. This includes both during the 
construction as well as the operational phases and, in particular, 
encompasses impacts upon both air and water quality.  

 
92. The application is supported by an Air Quality Assessment, Hydrological 

Impact Assessment, Flood Risk Assessment, Drainage Strategy, as well as a 
Habitats Regulations Screening Report which collectively consider the 
aforementioned impacts. As part of the application process, the views of 
Natural England have been sought in regards to the environmental effects of 
the development and they have raised no objection subject to the securing of 
appropriate mitigation, without which the proposals would have an adverse 
effect on the integrity of the European protected site.  

 
Construction impacts 

 
93. Construction impacts could include pollutant run-off (surface water) and dust 

contamination of the River Itchen. The submitted Air Quality Assessment 
considers the potential for the latter to occur upon ecological receptors. This 
concludes that impacts upon the River Itchen from the construction phase can 
be avoided where a Dust Management Plan (DMP) is adopted and strictly 
adhered to. The DMP can be incorporated into a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) which will cover the full range of measures to be 
implemented to control and limit the impact of the construction works.  

 
94. This includes the incorporation of the measures to offset any impacts of 

surface run-off that could potentially contaminate the River Itchen as outlined 
in the submitted Hydrological Impact Assessment, with these being deemed to 
be acceptable in principle. A condition will be imposed to require the CEMP to 
be submitted and approved by the local planning authority prior to the 
commencement of any development works on site and this will be required to 
be adhered to at all times. Subject to the imposition of a condition to this 
effect, Natural England have confirmed that they are satisfied that the 
construction phase impacts of the development can be appropriately managed 
such as to avoid significant effects on the River Itchen SAC. 

 
Operational impacts  

 

38



95. The submitted Air Quality Assessment considers the impacts from increased 
traffic use associated with the development upon the features of interest of the 
River Itchen SAC, which notably include the Southern Damselfly population. 
This impact has been considered both alone and in combination with other 
committed plans or projects in the Borough, which includes the approved 
Energy Recovery Centre on the adjacent land.  

 
96. This Assessment demonstrates that, where the combined effect from existing 

permitted developments is above the critical thresholds for oxides of nitrogen 
and nitrogen disposition at the receptor site, the predicted contribution from 
the current proposals is below 1% of the threshold. The report therefore 
concludes that there would be no significant effect resulting from the 
development on the interest features of the River Itchen SAC, either alone or 
in combination, during the operational phase. Natural England has confirmed 
that, based on the information provided and otherwise currently available, they 
concur with this view and have no objections to the application in this respect.  

 
97. The application also incorporates an assessment of the potential effects of the 

proposed development on water quality which includes the possible 
contamination of local watercourses (including the River Itchen) from 
hydrocarbons, detergents, silt and other pollutants. A drainage strategy has 
also been provided which sets out a range of measures to mitigate for these. 
The measures to be adopted during the operational phase of the development 
include: a sustainable urban drainage system to ensure that pre-development 
green field characteristics are maintained (i.e. there would be no resulting 
change in the quantity or quality of water leaving the site); the incorporation of 
a separate drainage system for the washdown facility which would be routed 
to the foul sewer system; and, measures to be put in place to protect water 
quality in the event of an accidental spillage (e.g. fuel), including a penstock to 
allow shut-off of the drainage system, storage of fuel within a double-skinned 
bund, and the provision of spillage contamination kits.  

 
98. With the incorporation of these measures, Natural England is satisfied that the 

potential risks to water quality can be mitigated such as to avoid significant 
effects on the River Itchen SAC. No objection on drainage grounds has also 
been raised by either Southern Water, or Hampshire County Council as the 
local lead flood authority. A condition will be imposed to require the details of 
the final drainage scheme, based upon the principles outlined in the submitted 
drainage strategy, to be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority prior to the commencement of development.  

 
99. In addition to water and air quality, the submitted screening report also 

considers the effects from lighting and habitat fragmentation upon otter 
populations and concludes that there would be no risk from the development 
in this regard. No evidence of otters using the site has been identified, 
although occasional / infrequent use is considered to be possible. Woodland 
corridors would be maintained around the boundary of the development area 
and controls on lighting can ensure that there would be no impediment to 
normal movement patterns by otters from the SAC. The final lighting scheme 
can be covered by way of a planning condition. 

39



 
Conclusion on the impacts of the development upon internationally and 
nationally designated interests: 

 
100. With the incorporation of the proposed mitigation measures in regards to the 

construction and operational phases of the development which can be secured 
through the use of appropriate planning conditions, the local planning 
authority, as the competent authority, are satisfied that the development can 
avoid significant effects, either alone or in combination with other committed 
plans or projects, on the River Itchen SAC. It is therefore deemed that an 
Appropriate Assessment is not required, in accordance with the Conservation 
of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended).  

 
Impacts upon protected species 

 
101. Saved Policy 25.NC of the adopted Local Plan states that development which 

will adversely affect a habitat or feature of importance for wild fauna and flora 
will not be permitted, unless it can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the 
Council that: (i) the benefits of the development outweigh the adverse impacts 
(ii) the adverse impacts are unavoidable, and (iii) appropriate measures are 
taken which would mitigate or compensate for any adverse impact. This policy 
is considered to be consistent with the provisions of Paragraphs 109 and 118 
of the NPPF which require that, when determining planning applications, local 
planning authorities aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity. In addition to 
these policy provisions, certain species are protected within the E.C. Habitats 
Directive and under Schedule 2 of The Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

 
102. An Extended Phase I Habitat Survey has been carried out, with this identifying 

the potential for protected and notable species within the survey area. Further 
Phase II surveys were therefore undertaken to determine if such species were 
present. The results of these surveys and the potential residual effects of the 
development upon protected / notable species are outlined within an 
Ecological Impact Assessment which has been submitted in support of the 
application. This document also subsequently sets out proposed mitigation, 
compensation and enhancement measures.  

 
103. The surveys highlighted the presence of range of protected / notable species 

either within the site or within the surrounding area. These included a good 
population of slow-worms and a low population of grass snake, up to 21 bird 
species, and badger activity. In addition, at least seven bat species were 
recorded foraging / travelling within the site and surrounding area and a 
number of trees were recorded as having potential to support roosting bats, 
although none containing evidence of roosting bats would be affected by the 
proposals. Evidence of otter and water vole was recorded along the River 
Itchen, five southern damselfly were recorded within the field to the east, and 
the presence of hedgehog was thought to be likely. No evidence of white-
clawed crayfish or great crested newts was recorded.  

 

40



104. The development would lead to the removal of 1.6ha of poor semi-improved 
grassland, 575sqm of semi-natural broadleaved woodland, and 1975sqm of 
tall ruderal and bramble-dominated scrub. This would result in a loss of habitat 
and habitat removal during construction could lead to direct impacts (e.g. 
killing or injury) on protected / notable species without appropriate 
management and mitigation. The submitted ecological assessment therefore 
proposes a range of measures to avoid, mitigate and compensate for adverse 
effects and provide ecological enhancements.  

 
105. These include: the protection of retained trees and woodland during 

construction; a sensitively designed lighting scheme to avoid significant effects 
on commuting and foraging bats; the undertaking of a pre-construction badger 
survey to confirm the status of any badger setts (a licence from Natural 
England would be required if any setts were found and needed to be closed 
either temporarily or permanently); the translocation of reptiles to a suitable 
receptor site; removal of bird-nesting habitat outside of the nesting season; a 
destructive search for hedgehogs prior to construction works commencing; 
and, the provision of a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) 
prior to commencement to set out ecological management actions to be 
undertaken during this phase of the development.  

 
106. In addition, a range of compensatory and enhancement measures are 

proposed including areas for wildflower meadow seeding, SuDS features with 
associated areas for wet grassland seeding, green sedum roofs for some of 
the buildings, as well as the provision of bat boxes and reptile hibernacula and 
log/brash piles. There is also a dedicated area adjacent to the eastern 
boundary which is within the applicant’s control and which is proposed for the 
creation of 575sqm broadleaved woodland. Whilst these particular measures 
have been welcomed by Natural England, final comments are still awaited 
from the Council’s own appointed Ecologist on the matter of the impacts, 
management and mitigation in regard to protected species. Members will be 
further updated on this matter at the committee meeting.  

 
Trees 
 
107. Saved Policy 59.BE (i.) of the adopted Local Plan requires that development is 

appropriate both in itself as well as in relation to natural features and trees 
worthy of retention. The application is supported by an Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment (AIA) which considers such details as the species, height and 
condition of the trees present on and adjacent to the site, the impact of the 
proposed development upon them, and sets out recommendations which 
include tree protection measures to reduce the potential for any harm to 
retained trees during the construction of the development. 
 

108. The site is not subject to any Tree Preservation Orders, nor does it lie within a 
designated Conservation Area. Notwithstanding this, the submitted AIA 
highlights the presence of trees along the site’s boundaries and off-site along 
adjoining field margins, with the principal arboricultural features being a 
veteran Willow (to the northeast of the application area) and a mature 
collection of English Oak positioned on the rail embankment on the southern 

41



boundary. These trees are category A trees which would be retained as part of 
the proposals and would be protected during the development works.  

 
109. To facilitate the development, the proposals include the removal of 3no. Apple 

trees (T21-23), 1no. Cherry tree (T24), the partial removal of a group of Ash, 
Field Maple, Hazel, English Oak & Hawthorn (G8), as well as the removal of a 
Hawthorn and Blackthorn hedge (H1) and a Hawthorn and English Oak hedge 
(H2). With the exception of the G8 group which are category B, the other 
removals are category C trees and are deemed to be unremarkable examples 
within their respective species. Mitigation replanting is also proposed as part of 
the landscape planting plans accompanying the application. In addition to the 
aforementioned removals, some pruning is proposed to tree groups G9, G10 
and G13 to provide sufficient clearance for the proposed access road. This is 
stated to be achievable without detriment to the retained tree cover.  

 
110. The Council’s Tree Officer has considered the arboricultural impacts of the 

proposals and has confirmed that they are satisfied that the limited tree and 
shrub loss as outlined above has been fully addressed within the submitted 
AIA. A condition has been recommended to require adherence to this 
document and the submitted tree protection and planting plans as requested 
by the Council’s Tree Officer. With the imposition of this condition, there is 
considered to be no conflict with the provisions of Saved Policy 59.BE of the 
adopted Local Plan which are outlined above.  

 
Noise 
 
111. Saved Policy 29.ES of the adopted Local Plan states that industrial or 

commercial development that would result in any noise-sensitive premises 
being subject to a loss of amenity by means of an excessive increase in noise 
and/or vibration exposure will not be permitted. These requirements are 
considered to be consistent with the provisions of Paragraphs 17 and 109 of 
the NPPF. The former requires that planning should always seek to secure a 
good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and 
buildings, whilst the latter requires that the planning system should contribute 
to and enhance the natural and local environment by preventing both new and 
existing development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk 
from, or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of, amongst other 
things, noise pollution.  

 
112. The application is supported by a Noise Assessment Report which considers 

the potential operational impact of the development in respect of the noise 
emissions from the site and those from associated transportation on access 
roads. This report includes the carrying out of sound measurements in the 
vicinity of the closest noise-sensitive receptors to the site, being Chickenhall 
Cottages (275m to the north-west) and the nearest dwelling to the site within 
Campbell Road (370m to the south-west), and puts forward recommendations 
for resulting noise levels from the proposals in these locations.  

 
113. In addition to this assessment, further clarification has subsequently been 

provided during the application process in respect of the level of likely vehicle 

42



movements, as well as in regards to any operations or movements which may 
occur outside of normal business hours. In terms of the former, this was to 
confirm that the predicted levels of traffic movements were in line with the 
submitted Transport Assessment. In respect of the latter, the agent has 
advised that the intended occupiers generally operate from early morning 
(0600) until approximately 1900 hours. Blaze Construction does however 
provide an out of hours emergency service for new home owners which may 
occasionally require access to the site to collect equipment, plant or materials 
outside of this period. This service can, on occasion, also require the 
infrequent usage of heavy goods vehicles with this being estimated to occur 
approximately 60 times per annum.  

 
114. The Council’s Head of Environmental Health has considered the submitted 

Assessment and in light of the requested clarification being received as set out 
above, has raised no objection to the proposals. Given the distance between 
the site and residential properties, they consider that the site is unlikely to 
pose a particular noise concern during the daytime and, if operational activity 
is confined to access at night for emergency call outs, this would not raise 
significant concerns in terms of amenity in this location.  It is considered 
necessary, however, for a level of control to be placed on night time activities 
and as such a condition is recommended, which aligns with that imposed by 
Hampshire County Council on the Energy Recovery Centre approval, to 
restrict the times at which HGV movements can occur. The business need for 
the site to be accessed in the event of emergencies is however recognised 
and, as such, this condition will allow night time access where this strictly 
accords with an emergency out of hours access strategy approved by the local 
planning authority to ensure its potential impacts upon residential amenity are 
limited.  

 
115. A number of other conditions are recommended to control noise impacts from 

the site. These include: a requirement for details of any fixed plant or 
equipment to be installed to be submitted to the LPA for approval prior to 
installation; a noise management plan to be provided which sets out details of 
the main sources of noise expected to arise from the use and measures to be 
adopted to minimise the impact on the amenity of residential uses; and a 
Construction Environment Management Plan to set out details of how noise 
impacts arising from construction will be mitigated. A condition controlling 
hours of construction will also be imposed.  

 
116. With the imposition of these conditions and based upon the information 

provided, the application is considered to comply with the relevant local and 
national planning policies in regards to noise impacts.  

 
Air Quality 
 
117. Paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that the 

planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 
environment by preventing both new and existing development from 
contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, amongst other things, 
unacceptable levels of air pollution. Paragraph 124 goes on to state that 

43



planning policies should take account of the presence of Air Quality 
Management Areas and the cumulative impacts on air quality from individual 
sites. Saved Policy 32.ES of the adopted Local Plan states that proposals for 
uses which may generate air, land or water pollution, will only be permitted if 
the Borough Council is satisfied that they have been designed to control their 
impact to an acceptable level, whilst Saved Policy 33.ES requires that where 
development appears likely to have a significant impact upon air quality in the 
locality, a suitable air quality assessment should be carried out. 
 

118. Whilst the site itself does not lie directly within an Air Quality Management 
Area (AQMA), a proportion of the traffic generated by the development could 
pass through the Eastleigh AQMA which covers Leigh Road, Romsey Road, 
Southampton Road and Wide Lane. The River Itchen Site of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) and Special Area of Conservation (SAC) is also located in the 
vicinity of the site. The development consists of an open storage use with 
ancillary offices and associated infrastructure which would generate additional 
traffic movements on the local road network. In light of this and the 
surrounding context, the proposals have the potential to impact upon air 
quality during the construction (dust soiling) and operational phases. This is in 
respect of both human health and ecological receptors. The application is 
supported by an Air Quality Assessment which considers both of these 
potential impacts, with the modelling undertaken also taking account of other 
committed developments including the approved Energy Recovery Centre on 
the adjacent land.  

 
119. The ecology related air quality considerations associated with the 

development are covered separately in the relevant section above. In regards 
to the human health impacts, the Council’s Head of Environmental Health has 
reviewed the submitted Assessment and has raised no objection. This report 
demonstrates that the operational impact of the proposals upon air quality 
should be negligible from a human health perspective, whilst the construction 
phase impacts in respect of nuisance and dust emissions can be suitably 
managed through appropriate measures set out in a Construction Environment 
Management Plan (CEMP). Recommendations for such measures are 
included within Appendix F of the submitted Air Quality Assessment and a 
comprehensive CEMP which has regard to these as well as the other 
construction impacts of the development can be secured via condition, with 
this being required to be submitted and approved prior to the commencement 
of any development works.   

 
120. In light of the information provided and this being deemed to be satisfactory, 

there is considered to be no conflict with the local and national planning policy 
provisions set out above.  

 
Lighting 
 
121. Saved Policy 36.ES of the adopted local plan requires that proposals 

incorporate well designed lighting where lighting is necessary. It is also 
stipulates that lighting should be concentrated in those areas where it is 
required and spillage, either horizontally or vertically, as well as the size and 

44



design of lighting columns, should be minimised. Lighting columns should also 
not detract from the character of the locality. In addition, paragraph 125 of the 
NPPF states that planning decisions should limit the impact of light pollution 
from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark landscapes and nature 
conservation.  

 
122. The application site is, as set out above, allocated for employment/industrial 

uses within the adopted local plan, which incorporates those of the nature 
proposed as part of this submission. Intrinsic with such uses is the need for a 
level of artificial lighting during the operational phase and in this case, this 
includes the car parking areas, storage yard, as well as the work shop / fuel 
store. Lighting would also be necessary during the construction stage of the 
development. Whilst this and the associated impacts are accepted in principle, 
it is still necessary for any such proposal to demonstrate that the specific 
lighting required would be appropriate and would not cause an unacceptable 
level of material harm, in line with the local and national planning policy 
requirements set out above. To this effect, the application is supported by a 
Lighting Strategy and Lighting Impact Assessment (LIA). These documents 
consider both the current effects from obtrusive lighting associated with 
existing uses in the area and the potential effects of obtrusive light that could 
arise from the artificial lighting required for the construction and operational 
phases of the development on sensitive receptors, and thereafter outlines 
mitigation where required.  

 
123. The application site is not currently illuminated, although there are industrial 

uses near to it where floodlighting is operational. The aforementioned LIA 
classifies the general environment where the application site is situated as 
being Rural (in line with the guidance and categorisations from the Institute of 
Lighting Professionals) on the basis of the characteristics of the area and the 
presence of the medium levels of ambient light near to the application site. It 
also identifies a number of sensitive receptors which could be impacted by 
artificial lighting. These include: residential dwellings and notably Chickenhall 
Cottages which lie near to the access route into the site; the nearby River 
Itchen which is subject to a number of ecological designations; Southampton 
Airport with the potential for aircraft to be adversely affected by obtrusive light; 
and the adjacent railway line with the potential for train drivers to be 
affected/impacted by lighting. 

 
124. The LIA sets out a range of measures to reduce potential light spill, glare and 

upward light which otherwise could, to varying degrees, have an unacceptably 
harmful impact upon these receptors. This Assessment concludes that, with 
the incorporation of these measures, the residual effects of the lighting would 
be minor with indicative diagrams being provided to demonstrate light spill and 
lighting levels across varying points of the site, including the access road. The 
views of Southampton Airport and Network Rail, as well as the Council’s 
Environmental Health Team and Ecologist have been sought in regards to this 
matter.  

 
125. Southampton Airport have raised no objections on lighting grounds subject to 

the installation of obstacle lighting on the buildings at the southern end of the 

45



site to avoid endangering the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of 
the airport itself, whilst Network Rail have advised that the developers should 
obtain their separate approval for their detailed proposals regarding lighting. 
The Council’s Head of Environmental Health also raises no objections subject 
to a condition requiring the submission and approval of a final detailed lighting 
scheme for the site by the local planning authority prior to installation. Network 
Rail and Southampton Airport would also be consulted further on these final 
details at that stage. It is considered therefore that in respect of the issues of 
amenity, as well as airport and railway safety in regards to lighting, these could 
be adequately addressed through the imposition of the suggested condition. 
The views of the Council’s appointed Ecologist are still however awaited on 
this matter and Members will be updated further in this regard at the 
committee meeting.  

 
Contaminated land 
 
126. Saved Policy 35.ES of the adopted Local Plan requires that it be demonstrated 

that land that is known or suspected to be contaminated will be remediated to 
a suitable standard for the proposed end use. This requirement is considered 
to be consistent with those of Paragraphs 109 and 121 of the NPPF which 
stipulate that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the 
natural environment through remediating and mitigating contaminated land 
and that decisions should ensure that sites are suitable for their new use(s), 
taking account of ground conditions and former activities. 
 

127. The application is supported by a Geo-Environmental Desk Study / Preliminary 
Risk Assessment Report. This report highlights that the site was previously 
developed with small farm buildings near to the northern boundary, as well as 
identifying the presence of industrial uses to the north and east, the railway 
line which runs immediately adjacent to the site boundary to the south-west, 
as well as the sewage works/waste water works to the north. The survey also 
alludes to the site being mainly directly underlain by superficial sand and 
gravel River Terrace Deposits. On the basis of the previous use of the site 
itself as well as the current and previous surrounding uses, a moderate risk of 
contamination has been identified and, as such, the report recommends that 
an intrusive investigation is undertaken to clarify the potential risks to the 
identified receptors and assess the extent of made ground soils present at the 
site. It is also recommended that soil gas monitoring be undertaken due to the 
nearby industrial site uses.  

 
128. In light of the findings of the submitted report and the nature of the proposed 

end use (industrial / open storage), this matter has been discussed in detail 
with the Council’s Head of Environmental Health who has concurred with the 
conclusions reached and has recommended that conditions be imposed to 
require the carrying out of the required investigatory works, with remediation 
and subsequent validation thereafter where necessary. With the imposition of 
these conditions, it is considered that the proposals comply with the 
requirements of Saved Policy 35.ES of the adopted Local Plan and 
Paragraphs 109 and 121 of the NPPF. 

 

46



Archaeology  
 
129. The application is supported by an Archaeological Assessment which 

considers the archaeological potential of the site in light of the development 
proposals. This assessment has been reviewed by Hampshire County 
Council’s Archaeologist who concurs with its conclusion that the site has the 
potential to contain as yet unrecorded Iron Age and Roman settlement and 
funerary activity.  

 
130. The County Archaeologist is, however, satisfied, that archaeology does not 

present an overriding concern in respect of the development and considers 
that the matter of the assessment, recording and reporting of any 
archaeological deposits that may be present can be suitably covered by way 
of appropriate planning conditions. These conditions will be imposed 
accordingly and, as such, there is considered to be no conflict with Saved 
Policies 167.LB and 168.LB of the adopted Local Plan, as well as the relevant 
paragraphs of Part 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework which 
pertain to heritage matters and considerations. 

 
Minerals and waste considerations 
 
131. The site lies within a minerals and waste consultation area to which Policy 15 

of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 (HMWP) applies. This policy 
seeks to protect potentially economically viable mineral resource deposits from 
needless and unnecessary sterilisation and encourage the recovery, where 
possible, of potential mineral resources prior to development.  

 
132. In addition, the site lies adjacent to an established Waste Treatment Works 

(WTW) and Policy 26 of the HMWP is therefore also applicable. This policy 
seeks to safeguard existing waste management infrastructure that provides 
strategic capacity, against both redevelopment as well as inappropriate 
encroachment to minimise the impact of development on near sites that may 
be incompatible.  

 
133. The views of Southern Water, who operate the adjacent WTW, as well as 

Hampshire County Council, who are the Minerals and Waste Authority, have 
been sought on the proposals. Southern Water have highlighted the proximity 
of the development to the WTW and that the very nature of such uses means 
that they are not ideal neighbours to sensitive land uses and have suggested 
that appropriate buffer zones around treatment works can assist in avoiding 
potential land-use conflict. Further clarification has been sought as to whether 
such a buffer would be necessitated in this particular case and if so the size 
that would be recommended, although no further details have subsequently 
been provided.  

 
134. The matter of the compatibility of the proposed development with the adjacent 

WTW has also been discussed with the Council’s Environmental Health Team. 
They have advised that the proposed open storage use would not in this case 
be one which is considered to be of such sensitivity as to make the proximity 
to the WTW unacceptable in regards to odour impacts/nuisance. Hampshire 

47



County Council, as the Waste and Minerals Authority, have also confirmed 
that they have no objection to the proposals in terms of the safeguarding of 
waste facility and the compatibility of uses. Similarly, no objection is raised in 
relation to the matter of minerals safeguarding.  

 
135. In light of the particular nature of the development proposed therefore and 

taking account of the comments received, there is considered to be no conflict 
with the aforementioned requirements of Policies 15 or 26 of the Hampshire 
Minerals and Waste Plan 2013.  

 
Transport matters and highway safety 
 
136. The NPPF sets out that development should be located and designed where 

practical to, amongst other things, give priority to pedestrian and cycle 
movements, have access to high quality transport facilities, and to create safe 
and secure layouts which minimise conflict between traffic and cyclists or 
pedestrians (paragraph 35). It also requires that planning decisions take 
account of whether safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all 
people and states that development should only be prevented or refused on 
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are 
severe (paragraph 32). These requirements are considered to be consistent 
with those of Saved Policies 100.T, 101.T and 102.T of the adopted Local 
Plan. In addition, Saved Policy 104.T requires the provision of an appropriate 
level of on-site car parking in accordance with the relevant adopted standards. 

 
137. The application is supported by a Transport Assessment which considers the 

impact that the development would have upon the local highway network both 
in alone as well as in conjunction with other committed developments in the 
area. It also considers the accessibility of the site by sustainable modes of 
travel and incorporates a staff travel plan which would be implemented as part 
of the proposals. For the reasons given in the below sections, it is considered 
that these documents, in conjunction with the other submitted plans, drawings 
and details, demonstrate that the proposals comply with the above local and 
national planning policy provisions in regards to transport matters. 

 
Traffic impacts 

 

138. In terms of the traffic impact of the proposals, the aforementioned assessment 
demonstrates that the development would generate 91 vehicle trips per day, 8 
of which would occur in the AM peak period (0800-0900) with 7 during the PM 
peak period (1700-1800), based upon average trip rates derived from the 
national TRICS database. The majority of the trips generated trips will 
therefore arrive and depart outside of the highway peak period. The Transport 
Assessment (in paragraph 6.5) confirms that these average trip rates correlate 
with the proposed end users existing operations. The figures have been 
further broken down to provide an estimation of the direction of travel of these 
trips, with the significant proportion (78.8%) of the departures in both the AM 
and PM peak periods being expected to distribute via Bishopstoke Road west 
and the remainder (21.2%) via Bishopstoke Road east.  

 

48



139. This information has been considered by Hampshire County Council as the 
highway authority. They have confirmed that they have no objection in regards 
to the traffic impacts of the proposals on the local highway network with the 
development generating resulting increases of between only 0.1 and 0.2% in 
traffic flows passing through local roads / junctions. It is not considered that 
such an impact could be considered to be ‘severe’ for the purposes of 
Paragraph 32 of the NPPF as set out above and, therefore, a justifiable reason 
for the refusal of planning permission.  

 
140. It is, however, acknowledged that the development would have an impact 

upon the Chickenhall Lane approach to the Bishopstoke Road / Chickenhall 
Lane mini-roundabout. The submitted Transport Assessment (TA) makes 
reference to the TA that was undertaken as part the Energy Recovery Centre 
(ERC) application and which had set out that this junction was expected to be 
above practical capacity by 2021 without improvements, with a small impact 
also resulting from the ERC. The highway authority have therefore, as was the 
case with the ERC development, stated that a contribution towards the 
improvement scheme for this roundabout will be required in order to mitigate 
for the impact of the proposals and improve highway conditions. The applicant 
has agreed to the contribution identified, although this has not yet been 
formally secured.  

 
Site access, internal layout and parking  

 

141. In terms of the vehicular access to the site, this is proposed in the form of a 
simple priority junction onto the private section of Chickenhall Lane which also 
serves the Waste Water Treatment Works, as well as two residential 
properties in the form of Nos. 1 and 2 Chickenhall Cottages.  This section of 
the road leads north to the publicly maintained part of the Lane which provides 
access to the the established employment area to the north-west from 
Bishopstoke Road.  

 
142. The access for the development has been designed around a swept path of a 

16.5m long articulated HGV, being the largest vehicle likely to visit the site, 
and such as to allow vehicles to be able to enter and leave in a forward gear 
with turning space having been provided within the site. Internal stacking 
capacity has also been designed in to prevent the occurrence of any queuing 
onto Chickenhall Lane, although the submitted Transport Assessment sets out 
that the likelihood of two HGVs arriving at any one time would, in practice, be 
low. The initial access point has already been installed as part of the 
implementation of the consent for the Energy Recovery Centre granted by 
Hampshire County Council (HCC) in 2014.  

 
143. Condition 15 of this planning permission also required that the private section 

of Chickenhall Lane be widened on the bends to allow greater tolerances if 
two HGVs were to pass in those locations. This condition was discharged by 
HCC on 3 November 2017, although this particular aspect of the works has 
not yet been completed. The development proposed as part of the current 
application for the open storage use will benefit from these improvement 
works.  

49



 
144. In regards to parking standards, those for commercial uses were previously 

based upon the HCC parking guidance which was withdrawn in April 2013 and 
Eastleigh Borough Council are currently in the process of producing a revised 
Supplementary Planning Document in this respect, although this is yet to be 
adopted. Parking for commercial uses is therefore presently assessed on a 
case by case basis. Based on the previous HCC guidance, a development of 
the nature proposed would normally generate a need for 38 spaces. Whilst 
only 28 are proposed, in this case the highway authority have confirmed that, 
based on the information provided in terms of staff numbers and associated 
movements as well as this parking being made available to all operatives, this 
is a sufficient level for the specific use proposed on this site and no objection 
has therefore been raised.  

 
145. The development is therefore considered to be acceptable and in accordance 

with the relevant local and national planning policies in terms of its access 
arrangements, internal layout and parking provision.  

 
Site accessibility by sustainable modes of travel 

 
146. The site is situated on the urban fringes of Eastleigh to the south-east of the 

town centre, which has a range of public transport facilities including frequent 
rail and bus links; the nearest bus stop to the development itself would be 
along Bishopstoke Road. The site is considered to be situated a reasonable 
cycling and walking distance to these facilities. Chickenhall Lane has a 
footway along its length as far Tower Way which is a of reasonable standard 
and, although there is currently no dedicated pedestrian footway along the 
shorter private section of the road which leads up to the application site, there 
is a well maintained wide grass verge which is conducive to pedestrian use.  

 
147. Whilst it is acknowledged that the movement of goods and materials 

associated with the proposed development will clearly require transport by 
road, there are considered to be opportunities that exist to travel to and from 
the development by foot, bike, bus or rail and, as noted above, the site is 
deemed to be well placed to encourage sustainable modes of transport for 
staff and visitors. To this effect, the submitted Transport Assessment 
incorporates a Staff Travel Plan which sets out a range of measures to seek to 
encourage the use of sustainable modes or means of travel, with the aim of 
achieving a reduction in the reliance on the private motor vehicle.  

 
Impacts on adjacent public right of way 
 
148. The site lies adjacent to a public right of way in the form of Eastleigh Footpath 

No. 49, the official route of which runs in relatively nearby proximity to its 
eastern boundary, with this continuing on to the north where it passes the 
Waste Treatment Works. There is a further footpath which runs immediately 
alongside the perimeter of the site inside the line of the definitive right of way, 
with this appearing to be the more generally walked route when travelling past 
the site on foot. The proposals include the provision of an area of woodland 
planting to the eastern side of the developed area, through which the definitive 

50



route of the right of way would run. Hampshire County Council’s Countryside 
Team had raised initial concerns regarding the impact of this upon the route of 
the right of way, with Eastleigh Ramblers also citing the potential effects of 
surface water run-off upon this footpath.  

 
149. Following the subsequent submission of further details and amended plans 

which demonstrate that neither the walked route, nor the definitive route of the 
public right of way would be interrupted by the proposed planting, the 
Countryside Team has withdrawn their objection. The revised proposals do 
include the provision of gates on the section of the right of way running 
through the proposed woodland and, whilst HCC have raised no objection in 
principle to these, they have advised that the gates will require their separate 
approval. An informative is proposed to be added to the decision notice in this 
respect. The final surface water drainage provisions will be covered by 
condition, however, the submitted drainage strategy is considered to 
demonstrate that the right of way should not be adversely affected.  

 
Planning obligation /considerations 
 
150. In accordance with the guidance contained within the NPPF, Saved Policy 

101.T and 191.IN of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-
2011), Policies DM23 and DM37 of the Submission Eastleigh Borough Local 
Plan 2011-2029, the Council’s ‘Planning Obligations’ SPD and the 
requirements of Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Regulations, 
this application generate a requirement for developers’ contributions towards 
transport improvements in the locality. This is to ensure adequate provision of 
infrastructure made necessary by the development and to mitigate against the 
impact of the additional trips that it will generate on the highway network. As 
identified by the Highway Authority, the required contribution would go towards 
the improvement of the mini-roundabout which serves Chickenhall Lane/the 
B3037/Bishopstoke Road, which the traffic generated by the development 
would utilise to access the site.  

 
151. The obligations sought are necessary to make the development acceptable in 

planning terms and the Council is satisfied that the projects and measures 
identified for contribution expenditure will comply with the 3 tests set out in 
Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy 2010, in that the money 
would go towards projects which are directly related to the proposals, and are 
fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.   

 
152. The applicant has agreed to the required contribution which will be secured by 

way a Unilateral Undertaking that is currently in the process of being 
completed. The required contribution will be index-linked to ensure that this 
rises in line with the costs of providing the identified projects/measures.  

 
Conclusion 
 
153. The application site is an allocated site for employment uses within the 

adopted local plan (Saved Policy 112.E). The proposed development is in 
accordance with this allocation and it is considered that it would have 

51



significant economic and social benefits through the provision of employment 
floorspace which will both contribute to the meeting of the Borough’s identified 
need as well as enable the creation of employment opportunities during both 
the construction and operational phases of the development. It would also 
allow for a significant employer within the Borough to improve its existing 
operations and continue to grow in a sustainable manner.  
 

154. The application also demonstrates that the particular proposal put forward 
would, with appropriate mitigation which can be secured either through the use 
of planning conditions or obligations, not cause unacceptable environmental 
harm through its impacts in regards to the character of the area, residential 
amenity, trees, noise, air quality, lighting, contaminated land, archaeology, 
transport, or in respect of minerals and waste considerations. It would also not 
result in significant likely effects upon European designated sites for nature 
conservation.  
 

155. In line with Paragraph 14 of the NPPF and the Framework’s presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, proposals that accord with the 
development plan should be approved without delay. The application is 
considered to be in accordance with the development plan subject to the 
resolution of the outstanding matters in regards to ecology and in particular 
protected species and the securing of the necessary transport developers’ 
contribution. In this regard, the comments of the Council’s appointed Ecologist 
are still outstanding and the requisite contribution towards transport 
improvements to mitigate the impacts of the development, whilst agreed to by 
the applicant, has as yet not been formally secured. These matters are 
required to be resolved before planning permission could be granted.  

 

156. Accordingly, it is recommended that the decision be delegated back to the 
Lead Specialist for Housing and Development in conjunction with the Chair 
and Vice Chair of Eastleigh Local Area Committee to PERMIT the application 
subject to no material objection from the Council’s appointed Ecologist and the 
imposition / amendment of the wording of any related conditions required in 
this respect, as well as the securing of the required Transport contributions.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52



 

53



This page is intentionally left blank



ELAC – Eastleigh Local Area Committee Tuesday 30 January 2018. 
 
Application 
Number: 

 
F/17/81683 

Case Officer: Jagdeep Birk (Miss) 
Received Date: Wednesday 11 October 2017 
Site Address: Land rear of The Salvation Army, Blenheim Road, Eastleigh, 

SO50 5SD 
Applicant: Eastleigh Borough Council 
Proposal: Conversion of existing play area into additional car parking  

 
Recommendation: Permit 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS 
 
1 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered: EC 01656 001 Rev D 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

2 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the 
date of this decision. 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
  

 
 
 

Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner. 
 

 
      Report: 
 
1. This application has been referred to Committee Eastleigh Borough Council is the 

applicant.  
 
     Description of Application 
 
2. Conversion of existing play area into additional car parking. The plans also 

include for sake of completeness the details of the conversion of Multi-Use 
Games Area (MUGA) to community garden which does not require planning 
permission. 
 
Site Characteristics 

 
3. The application site forms a parcel of land behind the Salvation Army centre on 

Blenheim Road.  To the north is the Swan Shopping Centre, Eastleigh train 
centre to the east and is bounded by residential properties.  The MUGA is split 
two areas; a caged kick about area, and a dis-used play area, these areas are 
separated by lock up garages.  The site is over looked by the gardens of the 

55

Agenda Item 8



residential properties where there are footpaths providing access to the garages 
and the rear of the houses.  There are two mature trees to the south which are to 
be retained. 
 
Relevant Planning History 

 
     None 
 
     Representations Received 
 

Five representations received,  

 Concern about anti-social behaviour 

 Preference for additional parking only 

 Concern about the maintenance of the community garden  

 Proposed parking should be part of the controlled parking scheme 

 Concern about additional traffic movement 
 

Consultation Responses 
 

 Hampshire County Council Highways – no objection subject to works being 
carried out in accordance with plans. 

 Crime Prevention Officer – no comments received  

 Borough Tree officer – no objection subject to condition 
 Parks and Open Spaces Manager – Provision of Grantham Green has 

addressed concerns of loss of the games area  
 

Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site 
 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 
 

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 
4. Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved policies: 59.BE-General 

Development, 145.OS-Protection of Existing Open Space, 185.IN-Community 
Facilities 

 
5. Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014 Policies: DM1-

General Criteria for new development, DM2- Environmentally sustainable 
development, DM35- Community, leisure and cultural facilities 

 
6. The Submitted Local Plan comprises: the Revised Pre-submission Eastleigh 

Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, published February 2014; and the Schedule of 
Proposed Minor Changes, submitted to the Secretary of State in July 2014. 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

 
7. Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011) 
 

56



National Planning Policy Framework 
 
8. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that applications for 

planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Para 14 sets out a 
general presumption in favour of sustainable development and states that 
development proposals which accord with the development plan should be 
approved without delay. Where the development plan is absent, silent, or relevant 
policies are out-of-date planning permission should be granted unless the 
adverse impacts of the development would outweigh the benefits; or specific 
policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted (paragraph 
14). Local plan policies that do not accord with the NPPF are now deemed to be 
“out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that due weight should be given to relevant 
policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF. 
In other words the closer the policies in the plan accord to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given. 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

 
9. Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the consideration of 

planning applications.  
 
10. Para 15; presumption in favour of sustainable development. Para 69; 

opportunities for meetings between members of the community who might not 
otherwise come into contact with each other, including through mixed-use 
developments, strong neighbourhood centres and active street frontages which 
bring together those who work, live and play in the vicinity. 

 
Policy Commentary 

 
11. The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against which this 

application will be assessed with particular regard to impact upon the character 
and appearance, crime prevention, residential amenity. 

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 
12. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:- 

 
13. "If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 

determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise." 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

57



Principle and Impact upon the Character and Appearance 
 
14. Saved policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and 

proper account of the context of the site including the character and appearance 
of the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and 
siting.  It also requires a high standard of landscape design, have a satisfactory 
means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclist and pedestrians, make provision 
for refuse and cycle storage and avoid unduly impacting on neighbouring uses 
through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, noise and fumes. 
 

15.  Saved policy 185.IN The Borough Council will not permit development proposals 
which would result in the removal or loss of an established community facility 
unless suitable alternative provision is made which is of an acceptable quality 
and siting or is more appropriate to the needs of the community, or the existing 
facility can be shown to be surplus to local needs. 
 

16. Saved Policy 145.OS relates to the protection of existing open space and resists 
the development of these areas unless the proposal is ancillary to the principle 
use of the existing open space, it affects lands that cannot be used for sports 
pitches, any space lost would be replaced in a more suitable location, or the 
benefit to the local community outweighs the loss of the open space. 
 

17. The site comprises of a parcel of land to the south of Blenheim Road that is 
approximately 365m2 in size, bounded by residential properties with the Swan 
Shopping Centre to the north and Eastleigh railway to the east.   

 
18. The site formed part of a general improvement area for which money was 

granted to local authorities in order to improve back land areas in the late 
1970’s/80’s. With regards to the application site, at that time the area to the south 
of Blenheim Road was considered to be sub-standard with narrow access and 
the idea was to allow residents to have access to the rear of their properties by 
creating larger useable paths.  A number of buildings were brought by the 
Council to facilitate the improvements.  As a result of the regeneration a Multi-
Use Games Area (MUGA) and play area was provided for. 
 

19. The application is seeking to convert the existing MUGA to a community garden 
and the play area to a car park. The proposal has come as a result of the work 
undertaken by the ELAC Open Spaces Programme Board to identify options for 
the development and regeneration of this site.  Public consultations have taken 
place to gain the views and support of the community, residents were given 
options to choose from which included additional lock up garages, pay and 
display car park and a small housing development.   
 

20. 48% of residents favoured a pay and display car park, 78% of residents voted for 
lockup garages and 7% favoured additional housing. Southern Water stated that 
whilst in the past buildings (i.e. garages) had been constructed over the sewer, 
the lock up garages would only be permitted if the sewer pipe was diverted.   This 
would have been prohibitively expensive and disruptive, requiring temporary road 
closures and suspension of on street parking 

58



21. The functional management of the pay and display car park would have proved 
difficult and so the final proposal includes additional parking for the existing 
residents parking scheme and a community garden.   
 

22. The car park was favoured by local residents to provide additional parking whilst 
the community garden would meet a wider community benefit of enabling 
community cohesion. 

 
23. Immediately to the rear of the Salvation Army is the MUGA which is a caged kick 

about area which has been a source of complaints from residents owing to anti-
social behaviour; this area is proposed to be used as a community garden which 
will be managed by local residents and organisations. The play area sits behind a 
set of garages and is no longer in use, the play equipment has been removed, 
and further works will be carried out to make this area suitable for parking by 
removing the railings and re-surfacing the ground. 

 
24. While the loss of the play area and MUGA is regrettable, the proposal meets 

saved policies 185.IN and 145.OS.  Saved policy 145.OS seeks protection of 
open spaces unless the lost space can be replaced in a more suitable location, 
this is reiterated by saved policy 185.IN does not permit development proposals 
which would result in the removal or loss of an established community facility 
unless suitable alternative provision is made.  The Council is in the process of 
developing the Grantham Green project.  Grantham Green is a large park that is 
currently being re-developed to provide, earth banks, new planting, seating area, 
and other facilities.  The green is within walking distance of the application site 
and will provide for better a quality facility that will include a playground and 
MUGA. 
 
Residential Amenity 

 
25. Representations have been received which have expressed concerns about 

potential anti-social behaviour that may arise.  The proposed uses are likely to 
discourage people from assembling around these areas, the existing fencing 
around the MUGA is to be retained for the community garden which will be kept 
locked, and the parking would be no more at risk than any other parking area. 
 
Highways 

 
26. The proposal will introduce 12 additional car parking spaces which will be 

controlled through the residents parking scheme subject to a traffic regulation 
order.  Local residents have expressed concerns regarding additional vehicle 
movement.  Applying an element of pragmatism the parking is unlikely to 
introduce such additional traffic movement that it would be harmful to pedestrian 
or highway safety, further to which Hampshire County Council Highways has 
raised no objections to the proposal subject to the scheme being implemented in 
accordance with plans.   
 
 
 
 

59



Anti-social behaviour 
 
27. A number of complaints have been received by the Council regarding anti-social 

behaviour at this site.  Areas which attract youths can at times result in anti-social 
behaviour which can discourage other residents from using such play areas.  
While the proposal may not completely eliminate these issues, the intended uses 
will be aimed at a broad range of residents with higher usage, thus allowing for 
more natural surveillance.  In addition the existing fencing around the MUGA will 
remain and the proposed community garden will be kept locked. 

 
Other material considerations 

 
28. Also of relevance is the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 -   2029, 

July 2014.  While not adopted it does carry limited weight by virtue of having 
undergone extensive public consultation and was the latest formal plan as the 
intended replacement of the current local plans.  With regards to this application, 
the new policies essentially echo those of the current plan and are not considered 
to affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 

 
29. The conversion of the existing play area into additional car parking and 

conversion of the MUGA to community garden is considered to be an appropriate 
form of development that would regenerate an under used area to one that would 
provide wider community benefits.  The proposal is in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012), saved policies 59.BE, 145.OS, 
185.IN of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011, policies DM1, 
DM2, DM35 Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014. 

 
 

60



 

61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday 30 January 2018 
 

FEES AND CHARGES  
 

Report of the Local Area Manager 
 

Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that: 
 

1) The Fees and Charges for Eastleigh Local Area are approved, as set out in 
Appendices A to E with effect from 1 April 2018; 
 

2) The changes to parking charges and hours as set out in Appendix F, for 
Bishopstoke Road Car Park and Dutton Lane Car Park are approved, subject 
to Cabinet approval within the Budget Report; and 
 

3) No increase is made to other car parking charges, subject to Cabinet 
approval within the Budget Report. 

 

 

Summary 
 
Fees and charges for Council services are reviewed on a regular basis. Following a 
Cabinet decision in September 2012 a number of fees and charges are now to be 
set by Local Area Committees and these are the subject of this report. 
 
Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of 
competence, including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or 
present in its area and the Road Traffic Act 1984. 
 

Strategic Implications 

1. The issues in the report support Corporate Plan objectives of reinvigorating 
town and local centres (car parking), enabling health and wellbeing (Energy 
Youth Centre, sports facilities), improving green infrastructure (Lakeside 
Country Park), while operating in a business-like, commercially-focussed way. 
Measures proposed at Bishopstoke Recreation Ground car park, and 
differential pricing for voluntary and front-line statutory services will help enable 
health and wellbeing.  

Introduction 

2. The purpose of this report is to examine fully the effects of income received by 
the Council with regard to fees and charges levied for services that are the 
responsibility of Eastleigh LAC.  A minimum increase in yield of 4.9% for all 

63

Agenda Item 10



 

 2 

fees and charges is recommended to be implemented from 1 April. 

3. Following a Cabinet decision in September 2012 a number of fees and charges 
are now to be set by Local Area Committees and these are the subject of this 
report.  

4. The proposed fees and charges are set out in paragraphs 5 to 9 below, and in 
appendices A to F. 

Car Parking  

5. The Parking Working Group is recommending that there is no increase to 
parking charges for six month pending a comprehensive review of parking 
across the Borough.  

6. The working group also made recommendations for improving patronage at 
Dutton Lane Car Park. This is a permit only car park first opened in 2016. Since 
then the car park has failed to appeal to commuters and it is now 
recommended that a 35% reduction in annual permit price (compared with 
other Town Centre car parks) be introduced from the 1 March 2018. If 
successful, this could generate additional income. 

7. While this Committee may support the recommendations in paragraph 5 and 6 
above, they are subject to approval within the Budget Report scheduled for the 
15 February Cabinet meeting.  

8. In December, Cabinet agreed that parking will be free after 6.00pm in the Swan 
Centre and Wells Place Car Parks from 12th December 2017. This decision 
recognised the trend in competing nearby towns where similar low or no 
parking charges have been introduced, mainly to support their respective 
leisure offers. It is difficult to predict the precise budget effect of this measure 
but it is anticipated there will an income reduction in the region of £184,000 in 
2018/19. 

9. Bishopstoke Recreation Ground Car Park was originally constructed to support 
the users of the playing fields and the Hub. In recent years the number of 
commuters using the car park has increase to such a level that many of the 
above users are being excluded from the onsite parking. This has a knock on 
effect on the viability of the clubs and organisations based there. In a bid to 
improve this situation Local Councillors have agreed to reduce the free parking 
period from 3 hours to 90 minutes and increase the full day charge to £8.00 
(Monday to Friday). On Saturday the chargeable period will be from 8.00am to 
12.00 midday with the full day charge being £3.00. Commuters will now be able 
to make use of the reduced permit price at Dutton Lane. 
 
Financial Implications 

10. It should be noted by the Local Area Committee that as a result of the 
upcoming Cabinet decision, there will be growth in the region of £184,000. This 
will have no direct impact on the Local Area Committee budget.  

64



 

 3 

Risk Management 

11. The policy of increasing charges for services at a level of 1% above inflation as 
measured by RPIX is part of the Council’s approved Budget Strategy. There is 
a risk that proposed charges will not yield the overall anticipated 4.9% 
additional income target for the budget but this will be monitored closely during 
the quarterly Corporate Budget Monitoring processes throughout the year. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

12. There are no specific equality and diversity issues associated with this report 
which simply presents a summary of the fees and charges for all services within 
the Council in one report. 

Conclusion 

13. A review of the Local Area Committee fees and charges has been undertaken 
and where possible the review reflects the Budget requirement to achieve a 
4.9% increase in yield.  Where possible fees and charges have been increased 
with effect from April 2018. 

 
GUY RIDDOCH 

 LOCAL AREA MANAGER (EASTLEIGH) 
 
Date:   January 2018 
Contact Officer:  Mandy Nellthorpe\Guy Riddoch  
Telephone:  023 8068 8082\023 8068 3369 
E-Mail:   mandy.nellthorpe@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices:   Six 

 
THE LOCALISM ACT 2011 

 
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 
 
None 

65



 

 4 

APPENDIX A 
 

Countryside Service Fees and Charges with effect from 1 April 2018 
 

Lakeside Country Park  
Prices ex VAT 

£ 
  Lake and Changing Rm Hire 3 hr session 
  Commercial/public sector 73.50 
  Registered Charity/Education/Club 22.00 
  Not for Profit Commercial 44.00 
  Registration Fee 73.50 
      
  Lake Hire 3 hr session 
  Commercial/public sector 73.50 
  Registered Charity/Education/Club 7.30 
  Not for Profit Commercial 14.60 
  Registration Fee 73.50 
      
  Arena Hire - Inc 4hr of staff overtime 8am - 8pm 
  Commercial/public sector 1,500 
  Registered Charity/Education/Club By agreement 
  Not for Profit Commercial By agreement 
      
  Arena Hire Extra Time per hr 
  Commercial/public sector 40 
  Registered Charity/Education/Club 20 
  Not for Profit Commercial 30 
      
  Arena - Over night   
  Commercial/public sector By agreement 
  Registered Charity/Education/Club By agreement 
  Not for Profit Commercial By agreement 
      
  Other Areas Site Hire (min £210) 8am - 6pm 
  Commercial/public sector By agreement 
  Registered Charity/Education/Club By agreement 
  Not for Profit Commercial By agreement 
      
  Events   
  Commercial/public sector By agreement 
  Registered Charity/Education/Club By agreement 
  Not for Profit Commercial By agreement 
      
  Waterside Hire - Existing Water Sport Groups per event 
  Commercial/public sector 105.00 
  Registered Charity/Education/Club 52.50 
  

66



 

 5 

Not for Profit Commercial 78.50 
  

    Conference Room - Large (60 theatre) 9am-1pm 1pm-5pm 9am-5pm 

Commercial/public sector 147.00 147.00 294.00 

Registered Charity/Education/Club 94.50 94.50 189.00 

Not for Profit Commercial 110.00 110.00 220.00 

        

Conference Room - Medium (40 theatre) 9am-1pm 1pm-5pm 9am-5pm 

Commercial/public sector 100.00 100.00 200.00 

Registered Charity/Education/Club 50.00 50.00 100.00 

Not for Profit Commercial 73.50 73.50 147.00 

        

Conference Room - Small (20 theatre) 9am-1pm 1pm-5pm 9am-5pm 

Commercial/public sector 52.50 52.50 105.00 

Registered Charity/Education/Club 26.50 26.50 53.00 

Not for Profit Commercial 40.00 40.00 80.00 

    Conference Room - Extras £ 
  Tea and Coffee + Biscuits - per person 1.75 
  Tea and Coffee - per person 1.25 
  Photocopying - per single sided copy B&W 0.10 
   

 
 
 

67



 

 6 

APPENDIX B 
 
Outdoor Sports Facilities with effect from 1 April 2018 
 
 

Outdoor Sports Facilities 1 April 2017 

£ 

1 April 2018 

£ 

Change 

% 

Charges shown are exclusive of VAT    

Cricket 1 April 2017 

£ 

1 April 2018 

£ 

Change 

% 

Pitch for adults with two dressing rooms 

half day or evening matches 

74.00 78.00 5.4 

Pitch for children (under 18 years) with 

changing facilities 

26.50 28.00 5.7 

 

Football 1 April 2017 

£ 

1 April 2018 

£ 

Change 

% 

Pitch for adults with two dressing rooms 74.00 78.00 5.4 

Pitch for children (under 18 years) with 

changing facilities 

28.50 30.00 5.3 

 

Mini-soccer pitch - per session 30.00 31.50 5.0 

Rugby 1 April 2017 

£ 

1 April 2018 

£ 

Change 

% 

Pitch - adults with two dressing rooms 88.50 93.00 5.1 

Pitch - children (under 18) with dressing 

room 

44.50 47.00 5.6 

Mini–rugby pitch - per session  21.50 22.50 4.7 

68



 

 7 

APPENDIX C 
Cemeteries Fees and Charges with effect from 1 April 2018 
 

Cemeteries 
 

1 Jan 2017 
£ 

1 Jan 2018 
£ 

Change 
% 

Internment:- 
All charges inclusive of VAT where applicable 

   

Child less than 12 years old (including still born) No charge   

Single depth 903.00 948 5.0 

Double depth 1,150.00 1206 4.9 

Re-open to single depth 975.00 1023 4.9 

Cremated remains 303.00 318 5.0 

For right to scatter ashes 82.00 86 4.9 

Additional charge for providing a 24 hour burial 
service 

503.00 528 5.0 
 

Exhumation At cost   

Additional charge for Weekend Working 
Or late funerals incurring overtime 

190.00 200 
 

5.3 

Plot in Columbarium (includes purchase and 
rights for inscribed plaque and first interment) 

770.00 808 4.9 
 

Exclusive burial rights: for 30 years 1 Jan 2017 
£ 

1 Jan 2018 
£ 

Change 
% 

Plot selected by Council  (purchased at time of 
burial):- 

   

Plot for adult 785.00 824 5.0 

Plot for child 447.00 469 4.9 

Plot for cremated remains 320.00 336 5.0 

Plot selected by Purchaser (purchased in 
advance:- Only available at Eastleigh 
Cemetery) 

1 Jan 2017 
£ 

1 Jan 2018 
£ 

Change 
% 

Plot for cremated remains 472.00 495 4.9 

Transferral of burial deeds 98.00 103 5.1 

Memorials: 
 

1 Jan 2017 
£ 

1 Jan 2018 
£ 

Change 
% 

Inscribing vase under 10” 85.00 90 5.9 

Any memorial (inc memorial licence for 10 years) 339.00 356 5.0 

Charges for additional inscription 77.00 81 5.2 

Memorial shrubs or roses for 7 years 149.00 156 4.7 

Memorial trees for 7 years At cost   

Memorial benches for 7 years At cost   

Memorial benches for additional 7 years 80.00 84 5.0 

 
N.B Double charges will be made for all of the above fees to non-residents (after two 
years outside of the Borough).  An exception is made where a resident transfers 
outside the Borough for specialist nursing home or hospital care. 

69



 

 8 

APPENDIX D 
 

Energy Youth Centre Fees and Charges with effect from 1 April 2018 
 

Energy Centre 1 Apr 2017 
£/hr 

1 Apr 2018 
£/hr 

Change 
% 

Room - Commercial  
Each 1 to 1 Room 
(Lime room, Blue room, Pink room, White room) 

7.00 7.30 4.3 
 

Room – vol. org/stat agency 
Each 1 to 1Room 
(Lime Room, Blue Room. Pink Room, White Room) 

5.60 5.90 5.4 

Main hall and chill out area – commercial 35.00 36.70 4.9 

Main hall and chill out area – vol. org/stat agency 28.00 29.40 5.0 

Whole facility (minus recording studio, office & locked 
storage) – commercial 

56.40 59.20 5.0 

Recording Studio – commercial 11.30 11.90 5.3 

Recording Studio – vol. org/stat agency 5.60 5.90 5.4 

Kitchen an extra per session amount will be charged – 
commercial 

11.30 11.90 5.3 

Kitchen an extra per session amount will be charged – 
org/stat agency 

11.30 11.90 5.3 

Whole Centre all day – commercial 340.00 360.00 5.9 

Whole Centre all day – vol. org/stat agency 280.00 290.00 3.6 

Gasson Suite – commercial 15.40 16.20 5.2 

Gasson Suite – other 12.30 12.90 4.9 

New customers 1 month free on bookings over 6 
months 

   

 
APPENDIX E 

Cable Works Fees and Charges with effect from 1 April 2018 
 

Cable Works 1 Apr 2017 
£ 

1 Apr 2018 
£ 

Change  
% 

IT Training Room –Commercial per hour 23.00 24.00 4.3 

IT Training Room – Commercial - Day Rate 120.00 130.00 8.3 

IT Training Room- Commercial – Half Day Rate 70.00 73.40 4.9 

Meeting Room – Commercial – Per Hour 17.00 18.00 5.9 

Meeting Room – Commercial – Day Rate 85.00 89.00 4.7 

Meeting Room – Commercial – Half Day Rate 53.00 56.00 5.7 

Interview Room – Commercial Day Rate  21.00 22.00 4.8 

Interview Room – Commercial Half Day Rate 16.00 17.00 6.3 

IT Training Room – Per Hour 17.00 18.00 5.9 

IT Training Room – Day Rate 70.00 73.40 4.9 

IT Training Room – Half Day Rate 50.00 52.50 5.0 

Meeting Room Per Hour 14.00 15.00 7.1 

Meeting Room – Day Rate 55.00 58.00 5.5 

Meeting Room – Half Day Rate 40.00 42.00 5.0 

Interview Room – Day Rate 16.00 17.00 6.3 

Interview Room – Half Day Rate 9.00 9.40 4.4 

70



 

 9 

 
APPENDIX F 

Parking Fees and Charges 
 

Bishopstoke Road Car Park from 1 March 2018 1 Apr 2017 
£ 

1 Mar  2018 
£ 

Change  
% 

Existing charges:  Bishopstoke Road. 3 hours free 
parking, no return within 12 hours.  Saturday charges 
apply from 08:00 to 14:00.  Up to 10 Hours parking 

5.20 n/a n/a 
 

Bishopstoke Road. 1.5 hours free parking, no return 
within 6 hours.  Mon-Fri charges apply from 08:00 to 
18:00.  Up to 10 Hours parking 

n/a 8.00 n/a 

Saturday Charges 08:00 – 12:00 n/a 3.00 n/a 

 

Dutton Lane – existing charges  
06:00-20:00 Mon-Fri, 06:00-18:00 Saturday 

13 weeks 
£ 

26 weeks 
£ 

52 weeks 
£ 

6 Days 330 660 1320 

5 Days 275 550 1100 

4 Days 220 440 880 

3 Days 165 330 660 

2 Days 110 220 440 

1 Day 55 110 220 

 

Dutton Lane – New charges from 1 March 2018 
06:00-20:00 Mon-Fri, 06:00-18:00 Saturday 

13 weeks 
£ 

26 weeks 
£ 

52 weeks 
£ 

6 Days 241 481 962 

5 Days 200 401 802 

4 Days 160 321 641 

3 Days 120 241 481 

2 Days 80 160 321 

1 Day 40 80 160 

 

71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 11 July 2017  (10:30 am – 11:05 am) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors Irish and M Sollitt 
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Kyrle and Grajewski 
 
Cerian Trevian   - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
Jean Roberts-Jones   - One Community 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Chris Jones, Councillor Paul 
Bicknell and Guy Riddoch 
 

7. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR 2017/18 
 
 The Chairmanship of the Joint Management Committee alternates annually 

between the two authorities. For the year 2017/18 the Chairman needed to 
be appointed from the Borough Council Members of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Councillor Irish be appointed Chair of the Joint Management 
Committee for the 2017/18 municipal year.  

 
8. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR 2017/18 
 
 The Vice-Chairmanship alternates annually between the two authorities. For 

the year 2017/18 the Vice-Chairman needed to be appointed from the 
County Council Members of the Committee.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Councillor Grajewski be appointed Vice-Chair of the Joint 
Management Committee for 2017/18 municipal year.  

 
9. MINUTES 
 
 RESOLVED –  

 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 February 2017 were agreed 
as a correct record.  

 
10. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 Consideration was given to the report of the Curate of Eastleigh Museum 

which advised that the Museum had a good early spring/summer period, 
with a number of varied and interesting exhibitions. Exhibitions had included 

73

Agenda Item 11



 

 

the first public exhibition from the local Fleming Art group, a celebration of 
300 years of Freemasonry and an exhibition of art work from the Horizon 
20:20 project. In addition, the Museum had also hosted a talk, a networking 
event, a preview evening, two trails and several craft sessions which had 
been positive. The exhibitions and events had appealed to a variety of 
audiences and attracted a range of visitors.  
 
One Community had continued to welcome a variety of groups to the 
museum and run various drop-ins or sessions. Included within this was 
regular visits from the Good Neighbours group, monthly Cops and Coffee 
sessions and two Care Home visits for tea and cake. They had also 
continued to act as a Hate Crime Reporting Centre.  
 
Eastleigh Museum attended the Eastleigh Medieval Festival which was the 
biggest external event they had taken part in over the past months. This was 
a great success and there had been over 500 visitors to the stall.  
 
Hampshire Cultural Trust was ‘recognised as a museum service under the 
2011 Accreditation Standard’ by Arts Council England’s Accreditation Panel 
on 9 February 2017. This acknowledgement makes it possible for an 
Accreditation Return to be made for Eastleigh Museum along with 13 other 
Accredited museums being managed by the Trust by the end of August 
2017. 
 
In March 2017 the ‘Emergency Conservation Unit’ responded to a call to 
rescue the Local History Resources from water damage which had resulted 
from a leak in the roof. Further leaks due to a lead theft from the roof had 
resulted in another visit in June 2017, in order to protect the 19th Century 
stained glass windows. Not all of the repair works had yet been completed. 
ACTION - Councillor Grajewski agreed to follow up the oustanding 
repair works with Hampshire County Council.  
 
In May 2017 at the Eastleigh BID ‘Up Your Game, Up Your Gain’ Awards 
Evening Eastleigh Museum were delighted and proud to win a Silver Award 
for Customer Excellence.  
 
206 school pupils took part in museum led workshop programmes from 

January-June 2017, visiting from The Crescent Primary School, Fryern 

Junior School and St Swithun Wells Catholic Primary School. On the 15 

March 2017 the BLC schools team was invited to Hampshire County 

Council’s annual primary history conference. This was a great opportunity to 

promote Eastleigh Museum’s learning programmes to teachers across the 

Hampshire area. The Museum is in the process of researching and 

developing ideas for self-led learning programmes, as a way to engage 

more schools. 

 

Better Life Chances was a major strand of work for the trust and the team 

delivered a variety of workshops, classes, events and projects, with the aim 

to reach those who were most vulnerable or disadvantaged and who may 

74



 

 

not usually have an opportunity to access arts and culture. Examples of its 

work included arts and cultural projects with young offenders and older 

offenders from across Hampshire, a poetry and visual arts project for people 

with dementia and exploring new ways of teaching and learning with 

Education Centres (Pupil Referral Units) across Hampshire including The 

Bridge in Eastleigh.  Such projects have had a positive impact on people’s 

lives.  

 

A new edition of What’s On covering the period of January – April 2017 and 

featuring Eastleigh Museum was delivered at the end of December 2016. 

12,500 copies were printed and it was now in circulation via its distributors, 

Culture Calling, to TICs, libraries, museums, accommodation providers, 

educational establishments, attractions, arts centres and theatres. “What’s 

On for Families” had also been created for the winter period which featured 

Half Term activities. 

 
The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, featuring exhibition and events from 
Eastleigh, now had over 5,000 subscribers. Events at the Museum 
continued to be promoted on social media sites on an ongoing basis; the 
Facebook now had over 3,120 ‘likes’ and Twitter nearly 4,800 followers.  
 
Everybody was looking forward to the summer exhibition ‘Commemorating 
the end of Southern Steam’ which celebrated the 50th anniversary of the end 
of steam services in the South. New visitor surveys would soon be in place 
to monitor visitor feedback for the next year alongside other venues. 

 
11. FINANCE REPORT 
 
 Consideration was given to the Financial Report and Revenue Budget 

2017/18, which included the full year for 2016/17 and the first quarter of 
2017/18.  
 
Members were informed that in Appendix 2, in Column A ‘Full Year Actual 
2016/17’ and Column C ‘ 2017 YTD/QTR 1 Actual’ some were provisional 
figures, as the final amounts had yet to be confirmed due to end of financial 
year processes. Therefore, the Net Expenditure and Total Expenditure totals 
were also to be confirmed.  
 
In addition, there was an error in Appendix 2, Column C ‘2017 YTD/QTR 1 
Actual’; the Net Expenditure total did not accurately reflect the Total 
Expenditure minus the Less Income. This figure would be confirmed.  
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted.  

 
12. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was confirmed that the next meeting would be held on 14 November 2017 

at 11.30am at Eastleigh House. 
 

75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 14 November 2017  (11:30 am – 12:15 pm) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council – Councillors Bicknell , M Solitt. 
and Irish 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Grajewski and House 
Local Area Manager ( Eastleigh) - Guy Riddoch 
Hampshire Cultural Trust - Cerian Trevan and Chris Jones  
One Community - Jean Roberts-Jones  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rupert Kyrle 
 

13. MINUTES 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2017 were agreed as a correct 

record. 
 
14. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 Consideration was given to the report of the Curator of Eastleigh Museum 

which advised that the museum had had an excellent 4 months over the 
summer and into the autumn with a number of exciting events and 
exhibitions which had increased visitor numbers. 
 
The highlight of the summer was the Commemorating Southern Steam 
exhibition that ran from July to September 2017 and was kindly put on by 
the Watercress Line as part of their Heritage Lottery Fund project, 
associated with their restoration of Canadian Pacific in Eastleigh Works. As 
part of this a huge event was organised in the town centre over the weekend 
of the 15/16 July to Celebrate Southern Steam – the key attraction being a 
heritage locomotive in the Precinct. This event saw a massive increase in 
numbers to the museum (and the museum stall) which helped drive up 
numbers over the summer period. 
 
Throughout the summer holidays One Community ran a train themed trail at 
the museum which proved very popular and they also hosted the second 
talk by Dr Becky Peacock (who curated the exhibition) about the CanPac 
Project. 
 
In September 2017 the exhibition changed over to another local story – Los 
Niños – about the Basque children who fled the Spanish Civil War and 
ended up in Eastleigh. During the period of time between the exhibitions, 
One Community ran a very popular craft fair in the exhibition space which 
attracted over 100 people each day. 
 
In addition, One Community had continued to welcome a variety of groups 
and organisations into the museum and run a variety of sessions or drop-

77

Agenda Item 12



 

 

ins. This included, but by no means was restricted to, regular visits from the 
Good Neighbours group, two care home visits for tea and cake, the monthly 
Cops and Coffee sessions, and continued to act as a Hate Crime Reporting 
Centre. 
 
One Community also attended another external event this period – 
Eastleigh Mela which continued to be a success for the museum with over 
500 visitors coming to the stall at the event. The museum was now looking 
forward to the festive period and would be putting on their first ever 
Community Christmas tree exhibition where different charities or 
organisations decorated a tree in a creative way. These would be displayed 
at the museum to celebrate and promote the work they do. This would all be 
kicked off by the annual Santa’s Grotto as part of the Eastleigh light switch 
on event on 18 November 2017. 

 
15. FINANCE REPORT 
 
 Consideration was given to the Financial Report and Revenue Budget 

2017/18. Mrs Jean Roberts-Jones, Chair of One Community, noted that in 
the Appendix 1 of the Finance Report, the “Less Income” figures were 
incorrect. Chris Jones, Hampshire Cultural Trust, advised that he would look 
into the figures and provide an update. 
 
Guy Riddoch – Local Area Manager for Eastleigh advised Committee 
Members that Free WiFi would be introduced in Eastleigh Town Centre, 
which in turn could help with the marketing of Eastleigh Museum. 
Committee Members also discussed the celebrations of the Centenary of 
the end of WW1 which the museum should be involved in. 
 
ACTION: Chris Jones to provide correct figures in the Appendix 1 of 
the Finance Meeting prior to the next meeting. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
16. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was confirmed that the next meeting would be held on 13 February 2018 

at 10.30am with the venue to be confirmed at a later date. 

78



MOTIONS 

 

a)  Swan Centre Parking 
 
To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor Steve Sollitt –  
 
“That this committee welcomes the decision of Council to scrap parking fees 
between 6pm and 8pm for parking in the Swan Centre car parks. 
 
However this committee is concerned about the process followed and in particular 
the lack of any internal discussion by members of this committee on the issue and 
the financial cost of such a move before the announcement. 
 
Therefore the committee agrees that, in the future; if a decision needs to be made 
without first being presented to a meeting of this committee, to ensure a good 
democratic and transparent process, a representative of all political groups on this 
committee should be informed and invited to comment.” 
 
b) Brookwood Cemetery 
 
To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor Steve Sollitt – 
 
“That this committee recognises the importance of people being able to mourn loved 
ones and pay their respects with as much dignity and respect as possible within 
Brookwood Cemetery.  
 
Committee further notes that the development of 94 properties off Woodside Avenue 
is progressing and part of this site will directly overlook the cemetery. 
 
In light of public concern, committee requests that the need for a “privacy barrier" 
(such as fast-growing trees growing elsewhere along the perimeters of the cemetery) 
is investigated and that this work is undertaken by the council, as land owner as 
soon as possible and not left until the development is completed.” 
 
c) Air Quality 
 
To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor Thomas – 
 
“That this committee calls for the Environmental Health Officers to attend the next 

meeting and provide a report of practical actions that can be implemented 

immediately to reduce the level of pm10s in the town area.” 

 

d) Road Safety 
 
To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor Thomas – 
 
“That this committee calls on Hampshire County Council to urgently investigate 
solutions to the difficulties that residents of Barton Road and Dutton Lane experience 
in exiting their roads safely AND implement a safe crossing at the north end of 

79

Agenda Item 13



Woodside.” 
 
e) Wildlife Habitat 
 
To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor Thomas – 
 
“That this committee requests officers to confirm whether or not there are Barbastelle 

bats in the woods in the vicinity of Pitmore Road following the confusion around the 

recent appeal on the planning application in the area.” 

 

 

80



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday 30 January 2018 
 

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 
 

Report of the Local Area Manager 
 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that: 

1. £96,296.37 is allocated for improved lighting for the Swan Centre Car Park 
from the revenue budget; and 

2. Up to £12,000 is allocated to the enhancement of the Eastleigh War 
Memorial from developers’ contributions. 

 

 

 

Summary 
 
This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s capital 
and revenue budget.  
 
Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of 
competence, including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or 
present in its area. 

 

Strategic Implications 

1 Recommendations in this report relate to the Council’s Corporate Plan objective of 
improving Town and Local Centres. 

Swan Centre Car Park lighting enhancement 

2 In 2016 this Committee gave approval for a feasibility study to explore the cost of 
replacing and improving the current lighting at the Swan Centre Car Park with 
modern LED units.  The new scheme will address the current dark areas of car 
park, improving the feeling of safety and bringing the Swan Leisure complex up to 
the modern standards expected by users. 

3 The study was carried out during 2017 and a specification for a new lighting 
scheme prepared. This specification formed the basis of a recent tender process 
with the lowest price for the work being £96,296.37 from an experienced lighting 
installer.  

81

Agenda Item 14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

4 Savings from the devolved car parking budgets have been set aside over previous 
years for these works and it is now recommended that £96,296.37 is allocated for 
this project from the revenue budget. 

Leigh Road Recreation Ground War Memorial 

5 Local Councillors have been working with the local Branch of the British Legion to 
deliver an improvement to the War Memorial in Leigh Road Recreation Ground. 
The Committee had previously allocated £35,000 for this and commissioned a 
more detailed design. The new design was recently put out to tender, however the 
lowest price was £47,000, which leaves a shortfall of £12,000.  

6 Councillors have asked that up to a further £12,000 is allocated from developers’ 
contributions, shown below, in order to ensure the project is delivered on time for 
the 2018 Remembrance proceedings. They have however, asked to explore if 
there are ways to save on this overall price, whilst maintaining a high quality 
finish.  

Previously allocated to Murals & Engraved Stones: 

DC4771/124Barratt, Pirelli Site, Eastleigh Receipt Date 
 

 

5,289.68 

DCZ/4771/124Barratts Southampton Re: Former Pirelli Site, Eastleigh Receipt Date 
 

 

1,190.28 

Previously allocated to Environmental Improvements Leigh Rd & Factory Rd: 

DCZ/4771/124Barratts Southampton Re: Former Pirelli Site, Eastleigh 
Receipt Date 

 5,520.04 

 
Financial Implications 

7 All recommendations in this report can be contained within existing allocated and 
unallocated developer’s contributions. One recommendation includes a 
reallocation of a developer’s contribution. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

8 An equal opportunities assessment has not been carried out as the report 
contains no proposed significant changes to new or existing services, policies or 
strategies. All of the proposed activities are designed to be as inclusive as 
possible, and several are particularly targeted at hard to reach groups. Car park 
improvements in this report will improve safety and thereby promote equality of 
opportunity for those groups with protected characteristics that disproportionately 
experience fear of crime. 

Conclusion 

Members are requested to agree expenditure from this Committee’s capital and 
revenue budgets. 

 
 

82



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
GUY RIDDOCH 

LOCAL AREA MANAGER (EASTLEIGH) 
 

Date: 30 January 2018 
Contact Officer: Guy Riddoch  
Tel No: 023 8068 3369 
e-mail: guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 (This is an exempt item) 
 
 

THE LOCALISM ACT 2011 
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 
None 
 
  

 

83



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

85

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Planning Application - Chickenhall Lane, Eastleigh
	8 Planning Application - Blenheim Road, Eastleigh
	10 Fees and Charges
	11 Minutes of meeting Tuesday 11 July 2017 of Eastleigh Museum Joint Management Committee
	12 Minutes of meeting Tuesday 14 November 2017 of Eastleigh Museum Joint Management Committee
	13 Motions
	14 Financial Monitoring Report
	16 Appendix A to Item 14 Financial Monitoring Report

